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Overall Point
of View Intro - My responsibilities under Act, pn‘loé}eél

The '83 Annual Report did not go further

because review of our Report findings

still in progress; by A/G & Speaker.

) &5 l‘lr‘-f L n"vlyP-{ huw-'p
Essentials - The claims and the documentation were highly
irregular, did not meet acceptable standards,
and in fact to A¥WS & me were likely fraudulent,
Therefore, felt it necessary to consult
with RCMP (which we did and they were of the
opinion that it was serious enough to pursue
further with Attorney General, Also reaction
of Speaker Nov.10/83, supported our concerns),

At legal level, Attorney General satisfied
that criminal prosecution not warranted, This
is an area that I am not competent to comment
upon, nor will I, because I have neither the
expertise or responsibility to do so.

However, the additional documentation and
explanation received (in BJMcL case) does

not, in my judgement, from an audit perspective,
provide adequate or proper support for a

payment.
& 0 ] ) #
Moreover- 1 personally find it extremely difficult to

accept the veracity of the explanation and
and documentation provided. Again, I will
make no jJudgement on the legality of the
matter.,

Consider that:
- there were 42 cases of §/M vouchers used;
- they were in continuity; _
- they included meal and tax charges as well;

- éo they could not be considered as memos
prepared after each trip;

- no explanation why this type of support
documentation had to be used in lieu of
proper type of documentation.

Ao fr Ao oneons
thy €lena Chonha %U\”lﬂ}‘
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Horcover -  Must rcport on follow up to 1983 article:

Cont'd .
- action taken legislation, regulations,

guidelines and administration;

~ Dbecause issues raised and considerable
detail known outside, it will require
me to provide more than otherwise;

- unable to indicate what precisely will
be stated, but will pﬁéﬁg to report on
status @ Jan,15/85 at latest.

<
1, re progress on items,-é;d iten above;

2. likely include thoughts from the 3
paragraphs in essentials;

3. will avoid names and situations .
related to namres;

4. nright have to describe briefly the
types of occurrances,

L L L * & *

Other =
Yatters - Clarify to A/G & Speaker - no comments to

the media on anything not previous knowledge.
¥e reacted to RCMP - Sup. HcCibbon remarks.

Yedia - has details of the circumstances
regarding BJ MCL & in their entirety, as

included in our report.

The Ripley letter - media questioned me
regarding the circumstances raised in his
letter, and advised me I would be receiving

a letter,,

Regarding media, I am not prepared to say
which media have what, would prefer to have
their permission to advise you.

Status investigation - Expenses
What is the process re referral to and dction

by RCMP
(Refer to Premier's renmarks),
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Purpose Advice on what I can/should do re:
‘ Dealing with Bpeaker, Attorney General, etc, .
v Dealing with pmedia
« Letter from Ripley "
T . Contents and wording of Annual Report .
v Review ‘- = .ie +. GXpenses
"Acting as a Commissioner (Section 13)
Taping of phone calls
Ability
to Act Independencefonfidentiality
Firm Partners
Politicaas
(Actual vs: perceived)
Need to distinguish?

Counsel - Representation

Scope - Criminal
Legislative
Other
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Precis May-Sept.'83 - Audit of expense claims all mcmbors,
ministers, deputies, ministerial, assistants,

5

= Pindings:

1) Bignificant inadequacies in the legislatic
regulations and guidelines; result -
inconsistancies in application.

2) Administration & control of function by
Speaker's Office extremely inadequate,

3) Usual number of inadvertent errors, over
and underpayments, etc.

T 4) Serious situation 6 members, 2 of which
appeared fraudulent.

Meetings RCMP and Attorney General’s Office,
left one member's case with Attorney General

for resolution, .

Oct.-November'83

Report to Speaker on MLA expenses.
The matter of certain other MLA's expenses
(see letter OPC to AD Dec.2/83).

Report to Chrm, Mgmt, Board on expenses of
Ministers, D/M's, MLA's.

Nov.29/83

1

Jan, /84

- Matter of one member given to Speaker to
follow-up, (Meeting A/D & OPC with member

_._anugxig%%zgi; see letter of A/D to Coles
Jan,13 .

Feb, /B4 - Meeting with Leg. Int. Economy Board
(see memo Feb,9/84).

Receipt of letter to member from friend,
received Feb.28/84 by OPC.

Meeting with Speaker & Legislative Council

]

-

Mar, /Apr./84 -
on Mar.28 to initiate action on revamping
legislation and regulations.
. - Letter Attorney Gen. to Speaker April 18/84
. re BJ McL (attached).
- Tabling of A/G Report (see article on p.49)
Bept. "84 - Request by OPC to AD & RR re advice
on current status re reports,
Oct. Nov,'84 - Information in bands of opposition and medi:

with attendent publicity.

Request of Auditor gonernI by Bpeaker to
reviev expenses of -. . (curreatly underw.

- Meetings held Nov.8 & 14 with AD & RR,
Meetings scheduled Nov.20 and 22/84.

- ———

TN 8 s masismsr g
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O
In March 1984, the recommendations of Evans Research Corpora-
tion were adopted, as the framework for developing long range plans
- and strategies for data processing within the government. Since then,
~ the preparation of the Government Systems Overview has begun, and

~ Many departments have commenced their long range systems and
applications plans.

| am pleased to note the positive reaction to the need for an EDP
policy, and the implementation of an appropriate course of action.
However, | draw attention to the time lapse between the original
identification of these problems, and the remedial action taken.

Department of Development
Resources Development Board

Venture Corporations Board

The Venture Corporations Act empowers the Venture Corporations
Board to make unsecured loans to venture capital corporations. The
venture capital corporations provide an amount equal to the Provincial
assistance, and make unsecured loans to third parties that are eligible
under the Act The purpose of this Act is to encourage investment in
companies that have difficulty qualifying for conventional loans,

Since it began, the program has grown steadily each year. At March
31, 1984, loans totalling $3,665,990 had been made to venture
corporations. The terms of these loans provide for no repayments in the
first 10 years unless there are distributions to the venture corporation
shareholders. Repayments, with interest, are to begin after the 10 year
period based upon the profitability of the venture corporations.

Sections 15 and 16 of the Venture Corporations Act require the
venture corporations to file an annual return and audited financial
statements within four months of their fiscal year end. In October 1983,
seven of the 16 venture corporations registered with the Board had not
filed the required annual return or financial statements. A follow-up
examination a year later showed that only half of the venture corpora-
tions were submitting the required information.

OTHER AUDIT OBSERVATIONS 57

In mid 1984, in recognition of the difficulties being encountered in
the monitoring of these loans, the Department of Development staff
implemented revised operating procedures to achieve a closer liaison
with, and information fiow from, the venture capital corporations.

In my opinion, it is important that the Venture Corporations Board
obtain current information on a regular basis, to ensure that the
provisions of the Act are adhered to, and that loans are being applied to
the purposes agreed upon.

Expenses of Members of the House of Assembly,
Members of the Executive Council, Deputy
Ministers and Ministerial Assistants

Introduction

In the March 31, 1983 Report of the Auditor General, there was a
brief article noting that a review of the expenses of the members of the
House of Assembly, Members of the Executive Council, Deputy
Ministers, and ministerial assistants had been carried out. This article
concluded “.. there were serious inadequacies in the House of
Assembly Act, the Executive Council Act, and the accompanying
regulations, relating to expense allowances for Members of the House
and Executive Council. These inadequacies relating to voids, contradic-
tions, overlaps, and other deficiencies have made it extremely difficult in
many cases. to be certain of the intent of the legislation. The possibilities
for misinterpretation and error also posed problems for the claimants,
and those responsible for the approval of expense claims.”

Two reports were issued on the basis of this audit — one to the
Speaker of the House of Assembly, regarding expenses of members of
the House, and one to the Chairman of the Management Board,
concerning expenses of Ministers, Deputy Ministers, and ministerial
assistants.

However, it was not appropriate at the time of the preparation of our
1983 Annual Report to provide any detail other than that which was
reported, because of two conditions. First, one member's expenses were
under review by the Attorney General. Second was the need for the
Speaker to obtain explanations for certain other members’ expenses,
which was deferred pending resolution of the item in the hands of the
Attorney General.
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During the past few months, action has been taken by the Speaker,
Management Board, and the Legislature Internal Economy Board on the
various matters raised in our two reports. It is now possible to report in

detail on;
— the objectives and conclusions of our review:

— the steps taken to remedy the various problem areas identified:
and

— to express an opinion on the resolution of the matters raised in
our audit reports,

Scope of Audit

Our office completed a review of the travel, accommodation, per
diem, and constituency expenses of all members of the House of
Assembly, for the period from January 1, 1982 to June 30, 1983,

The objective of this audit was to determine whether the expense
claims of the members were prepared in accordance with the provisions
of the House of Assembly Act, the Executive Council Act and related
Regulations. The audit "eport on this assignment was issued to the
Speaker on November 29,1983,

In addition, we reviewed travel and other expenses of the members
of the Executive Council, Deputy Ministers, and ministerial assistants for

the Management Board on January 20, 1984,

In both audits, we examined expense claims of all persons in each
of the groups mentioned. In certain cases, we examined all of the
expense claims for a given individual, but in most cases we examined
only a sample of the claims,

OTHER AUDIT OBSERVATIONS
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Principal Audit Findings

The overall findings and conclusions derived from both audits m:

be summarized as follows:

1)  Numerous deficiencies were eéncountered with respect to th
adequacy of supporting documentation and explanations f
expenses claimed in all groups audited. As a result, it was ofte
impossible to determine whether or not the expenses claime
were eligible for reimbursement. In addition, there wer
instances where non-allowable expenses were claimed an
reimbursed.

2) Under Sections aom&:. and 43(1)(ed) of the House of Assemb!
Act. members of the House are entitled to recover constituenc
expenses as determined by Legislature Internal Economy Boar(
Regulation. The Regulation was inadequate in terms of describ
ing the extent to which certain expenses were claimable.

3) Outside members are those whose normal place of residence -
more than 25 miles distant from the House of Assembly. Unde
the Executive Council Act, Section 5(A) and the House o
Assembly Act, Section 40(2), outside members are entitied 1
reimbursement for reasonable travel, accommodation, anc
other expenses incurred.

However, the Regulations under these two Acts did not clear,
define the allowable expenses as being only those out-of
pocket expenses actually made, nor did the Regulations
indicate the extent to which some expenses could be claimec
for trips made when the House was not in session,

4) The responsibility for the checking and approval of members
eéxpense claims rests with the Office of the Speaker. During
most of the period subject to our audit review, the Speaker's
Office did not have sufficient staff resources to review ade-
Quately these expense claims. This deficiency was remedied
and at the conclusion of our audit, more appropriate staffing
arrangements were in place.

Accordingly, it was our conclusion that the Speaker’s Office had
not fulfilled its responsibilities in terms of requiring proper
documentation and explanation, and reviewing expense claims
for compDliance with aviatia - M. .+ ..
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Significant Dates and Events

To provide a better perspective on this audit, the subsequent review
process, and the resolution of matters raised in our reports, the following
tabulation of significant events is presented.

The audit was performed by our office during the months of May to
September 1983, and as previously noted, covered the period January 1,
1982 to June 30, 1983 for members of the House of Assembly; and from
April 1, 1982 to March 31, 1983 for members of Executive Council,
Deputy Ministers, and ministerial assistants.

During our review of the expense claims of one member of the
House of Assembly, documentation was found which, in the opinion of
the then Auditor General, was questionable as to its authenticity and
appropriateness. It was decided to contact the RCMP, and consult with
them regarding this documentation, with a view to determining whether
the matter should be referred to the Attorney General. Two meetings
were held between representatives of this office and the Commercial
Crime Division of the RCMP in late October 1983.

It should be noted that the expense documentation of only one
member was referred to the RCMP by our office for their advice.

On November 22, 1983, there was a meeting attended by the former
Auditor General and myself, the Deputy Attorney General and a Director
from his staff, and two representatives of the RCMP. The matter of certain
expense claims of one member was discussed, and it was decided that
the Attorney General's Department would take this matter under
advisement.

On November 29, 1983, our report was issued to the Speaker of the
House of Assembly on the audit of the travel, accommodation, per diem,
and constituency expenses of the members of the House of Assembly.

In this report, we outlined matters relating to six members of the
House. There were items requiring further explanation or justification,
not readily discernible from the expense claims and documentation
submitted, involving:

— improper documentation attached to the expense claims:;

OTHER AUDIT OBSERVATIONS 6

— inadequate clarification in the Regulation of the Legislatur
Internal Economy Board, or the directives and guidelines fror
the Speaker's Office relating to the reimbursement of certa:
expenses; and

— apparent overpayments, certain of which were inadverter
clerical errors.

The Speaker's Office undertook to contact each of these member:
and obtain explanation or recovery of the expense payment, as deeme-
appropriate. However, it was decided that this action by the Speake
would be deferred, until the matter in the hands of the Attorney Gener:
was resolved.

On January 20, 1984, our report on the expense claims of Minister«
Deputy Ministers, and ministerial assistants was issued to the Chairma:
of the Management Board. In this report, it was noted that there wer:
some instances of inadequate documentation and explanation, an:
apparent deviation from the éxpense guidelines used for publ
servants. it was recommended that revised guidelines be prepared !
specify what are allowable expenses, and to prescribe documentatior
and explanation requirements.

In February 1984, | met with the Legislature Internal Econom.
Board. The Board advised that steps would be taken to proceed with the
development of appropriate Regulations and guidelines to address the
various problems with respect to ambiguity and incompleteness 1
existing Regulations and guidelines.

On April 18, 1984, the Attorney General in a letter to the Chairman o
the Legislature Internal Economy Board (who is also the Speaker of the
House of Assembly), presented his Department’s reply to our request o!
November 1983 regarding certain expense claims of one member. This
letter was made public by the Attorney General ata press conference on
November 1, 1984,

On August 1, 1984, a Bulletin providing an overall policy statement
definitions, and guidelines relating to the claiming and documentation ot
Ministers' expenses, was issued by Management Board.

On October 28, 1984, the Speaker requested that | conduct a further
review of the expense claims of Malcolm A. MacKay.
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On November 1, 1984, a revised statement of travel policy was
issued in Management Manual 510 — Personnel Management. This
statement provides a comprehensive coverage of travel policies, and
payment allowances for all public servants.

members of the House. In addition, the Board approved a set of policy
guidelines on members’ indemnities, allowances, expenses and
reimbursement, to supplement this Regulation.

On January 11, 1985, | reported to the Speaker on the findings of
our expanded review of the expense claims of Maicolm A. MacKay.

During the months of November 1984 to February 1985, the
Speaker met with the six members noted in our report, and | met with
three of them as well. The purpose of these meetings was to receive
their explanations regarding various expense claims submitted.

Concluding Remarks

In the following paragraphs of this article, | present my opinions
regarding the disposition of the principal matters raised in our audit
reports to the Speaker of the House and to the Chairman of Manage-
ment Board.

(1) Regulations and Guidelines

The Management Manual Bulletins referred to above for
Ministers, Deputy Ministers and ministerial assistants, and the
Regulation and guidelines of the Legislature Internal Economy
Board for 1985 for members of the House of Assembly have
been reviewed in detail by our office.

In my opinion, these now provide adequate definitions and
descriptions of expense entitiements, and the required process
for claiming and reimbursement. In addition, they deal
satisfactorily with our audit conclusions and recommendations,
relating to ambiguities and incompleteness.

OTHER AUDIT OBSERVATIONS t
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(3)

The Legislature Internal Economy Board Regulation and relats
“Policy Guidelines On Members’ Indemnities, Allowance
Expenses And Reimbursement”, have been published by
Speaker's Office. In briefing sessions held in January 19¢
these were explained to the members.

Members, Ministers, Deputy Ministers and ministerial assistan
entitied to be reimbursed under these regulations and guids
lines, should make every effort to ensure they understand ar
comply with them.

Administration of the Expense Approval Process

Moreover, those responsible for administering the approval an
disbursement process must ensure there is compliance with th
eligibility, documentation, and explanation requirements of th
Regulation and guidelines.

It must be recognized that there are two complementar
segments involved — adequate Regulation and guidelines, an
competent administration. Both of these must be in place t.
ensure the proper management of this activity.

In my opinion, the revised Regulation and Guidelines, as well a
the improved procedures in the Speaker's Office, shoul:
provide for the adequate administration of this function.

One Member's Expense Claims

The matter of certain expense claims of the Honourable Willian
J. MaclLean was referred to the Attorney General, because i1
the opinion of the Auditor General, the documentation wa:
questionable as to its authenticity and appropriateness. These
expenses totalled $6,952. The April 18, 1984 letter from the
Attorney General to the Chairman of the Legislature Internal
Economy Board, indicated that there was no basis for further
action by his Department on this matter.

It should be clearly understood that it is not within the responsi-
bility, or the competency of my office to make judgements with
respect to legal matters which have been referred to the
Attorney General for his opinion or action.
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(4)

(5)

However, as Auditor General, it is My opinion that the documen-
tation employed, and the explanations provided by the member
for certain expense claims are inappropriate for the expenses
claimed, and unacceptable from an audit standpoint,

Expense Claims of Five members

Results of subsequent explanations received for the expense
claims of four other members, and additional claims of the
member discussed in section 3 above, are as follows.

There were items for which reasonable explanations were
provided by the members concerned, certain of which involved
prior approvals by the Office of the Speaker. In these cases, |
was satisfied with the explanations received, and agreed that
the members were entitled to reimbursement.

There was a second group of items comprising overpayments,
principally due to inadvertence, clerical error, or misinterpreta-
tion of entitlements. In the case of all five members, there were
items to be repaid, which total $9,790. Satisfactory repayment
arrangements have been made in all cases.

Review of Expense Claims of Malcolm A. MacKay

Our audit report of November 29, 1983 included comments on
the review of the above member's expense claims for the period
January 1, 1982 to August 31, 1983. We questioned the
appropriateness of certain eéxpense payments, because in our
opinion, according to the House of Assembly Act, he did not
qualify as an outside member.

On the basis of a letter to me f.om the Speaker of the House of
Assembly, dated October 28, 1984, we expanded our review of
Mr. MacKay's expense claims, to encompass the period
January 1, 1981 to September 30, 1984

We again verified that he was not resident more than 25 miles
distant from the place where the House sits.Thus, he did not
qualify as an “outside member”, in accordance with Section 1
(I(bb) of the House of Assembly Act. Accordingly, he was not
entitled to “Travelling and Accommodation Expenses”, under
Section 40 (2) of the Act.

OTHER AUDIT OBSERVATIONS
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The member commenced claiming expenses as an out
member on February 19, 1981. From then to September
1984, travel and accommodation éxpenses as an ou!l
member were claimed by, and paid to, him in the amour
$34,454.

OnJanuary 11, 1985, | reported to the Speaker on the finding
this audit review. It is my opinion that Mr. MacKay did not qu.
for outside member status, and should not have been prov
expense allowances as one.

It was the view of the Speaker and the Legislature Inte:
Economy Board that responsibility for this situation was
entirely the member's. There was a lengthy period of time du:
which his claims as an outside member were accepted :
paid. As well, the member had a strongly held view that he v
entitled to outside member status, because a large portion o!
constituency was over 25 miles distant from the House.

Accordingly, the Speaker has requested repayment for only 1
portion of his expenses paid during 1984 when he used
improper residence address, which amounts to $7,024.

Information

It is essential that Regulations, guidelines, and Managem:
Manual Bulletins relating to travel expenses be made public
their entirety, and steps be continued to explain the definitio
conditions, and entittements contained therein. Moreover, |
administrative processes relating to expense payments o
reimbursement procedures should be clearly explained to
concerned on a regular basis.

The Speaker has initiated this year, the practice of meeting w
all members of the House 1o review the Regulations a
guidelines with them. It is my understanding this practice will
maintained.
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(7) Disclosure of Expenses

In keeping with the need for Proper accountability, and
adequate disclosure of government expenditures, and also to
permit comparability with disclosure of other government salary
and expense payments, | recommend the following.

Details of all payments to members should be reported each
year in the Supplement to the Public Accounts. For each
member there should be disclosure of:

— annual indemnity payments;
— committee fees;
— other stipends received:

— travel expenses for constituency and House related
matters;

— travel expenses for committee work; and

— constituency office and other related expenses paid for
the member.

* ok ok ok ok R

In summation, | am pleased to report that the initiatives taken with
respect to new Regulations and guidelines, an improved review and
approval process in the Speaker's Office, and the dissemination of
information to members of the House do adequately deal with the
administrative and procedural matters raised in our audit reports. In
addition, the specific items concerning certain members' expense
claims have been finalized. The recommendation made, in the imme-
diately preceding section, regarding a greater degree of disclosure of
expenses warrants serious consideration.

It is indeed unfortunate that the recommendations made by the
Auditor General in his 1978 Annual Report relating to members’
expenses were not acted upon. Had they been, the situation expe-
rienced in 1983 and 1984 might have been avoided.

OTHER AUDIT OBSERVATIONS 6

Grants and Assistance

During our audits of three departments, we found a lack 0
adequate control over several grant and assistance programs. Prope
control features should include the evaluation of requests to ensure the,
meet the criteria of the program, and a subsequent review to determine
that the monies were used for the approved purposes.

The weaknesses we encountered in the three departments are
described in the following paragraphs.

Department of En vironment

Policies and guidelines do not exist over the disbursement of
Environmental Improvement Project grants. Grants are made on an ad
hoc basis, and thus proper evaluation and review criteria are not always
applied.

We became aware of one grant for $100,000 to finance an
incinerator project Shortly after the grant was given, the project was
terminated by the local government The Department had no stipulations
Or covenants concerning the requirement to complete the project, so the
grant recipient was completely within its rights to cancel the project, and
the Department had no recourse.

This might have been Prevented if appropriate policies and
guidelines were in place for disbursement of these grants,

Department of Development

We found one grant for $20,000 under the Assistance to Industrial
Commissions program was not properly evaluated against existing
Program policies and guidelines, and there was no documentation to
Support the grant request.
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Progressive Conservative M.L.A. 8. _During the annual

I —— e} o] audit, _t}ie_,expens_e_s of _the___f_ono_wi_pg M.L.A.'s came 1nto_‘__

—--— 4 .—._._| question:

— e — e —————— .

eSS e ——— sl e

e eidie. | .= Nilliam g, Maclean, Inverness South Constituency

T e ——— e — .o

- TS e vk "-‘——-u—.-—-—_.-—.
.______...ﬁh___..--_m_ ——
.

T —

-
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— . — — —— =

- — -The_Auditor General_had prepared_three packages for exampl:

purposes, outlining the expenses of MacLeanm
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______j__ The packages contained copies of the expense
_____ __"__-__ statements and a resume outlining the irregularities
N For example, the 1rregu1arities noted in MacLean's expense
involved: ..=.claiming expenses Amproperi1y
______ _ == --=-. —. .~ claiming excessive living allowance
el _ __________-_g_;g:t_;pj_.pg__gg_ngt!,tuency allowance twice
.. 4 7] -—=--. ...~ Paying rent to a member owned business
— ————— ROt providing_adequate detail on_claim .
e — - false dovoleetsj . . ,
L Copies of the _packages__gg_::_e,_vprovided to us to review (enclo
S - -~ {.The Auditor General explained that the meeting was ap .
— .. _. 7 informal information_meeting_in which he was_ seeking advice
o] ____,_%%ng, to our satisfaction, that
————} ... ] the matters west 4 a eare.:l to be crimir
"———4-. .|din nature, Other Provincial Statutes
-+ — 4. . _] the Executive Council Act and the Hous
—— e _| and related..Regulations._._
————+-—-.—1_1f he should make a formal .
- police, the Speaker of the House, or the Attorney General
W He was adviged that _we would review the
~————3——{hin on 83-10-28,
‘
et - Todris
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93-10-?6 . On our return from the meeting, Inapector_nlue and I met

with the C.1.B. 0. & ) the matters were reviewed It was

— - —— . . s mrme e

decided that a meeting should be arranged between repres-

entatives of the Auditor General's Dept,, Dept, of the
Attorney General, and our Force (possibly Tuesday, 83-11-(

I = Nova Scotia Safety Council. L
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33_10-27§ Phoned Mr. Paul Cormier of the Auditor General's Department,
§ and arranged for a meeting to be held w;th p;m gnd h%s
staff at };}p_pm'on ;he 28 October.
83-10-28 Supt. MacGibbon and myself met with the Auditor General,

e eseemmmS e s ESsSE eSS SESSE AN S S o --—— -

Mr. Sarty; the Deputy Auditor General, Mr. Paul Cormier;
and two of their staff, David Hicks, Staff Professional,
and Thomas Edwards, Audit Supervisor._ At this meeting it_ _
was pointed out to the Auditor General personnel that

it was our recommendation that this matter be brought to
the attention of the Attorney General's office of this
province. We advised that we would be willing to attend
any such meeting between the Auditor General's staff

and the Attorney General's staff. They expressed the opini
that they would like to advise the House Speaker prior to s
a meeting but would be unable to do so prior to November
10th, as the Speaker was out of the country. We advised _
that we saw no difficulty with this and, following their
meeting with the Speaker,_suggested a meeting be held ___

with the Attorney General's Dept. as well. .

e
At this time we reguested the Auditor General's personnel

to supply, if possible, a breakdown of _all irregularities
noted and by category.
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33-10-283' The meeting then adjourned on the unde_ratanding that the
o o Auditor General's personnel would be _i;l_g_quc_:_h___ggth our
' office following their meeting with the Speaker,
:: s.UQI. -
MBleaw . . e S
———— e} Y e e -
. i o - —
0= (i Hen® ™ wronoa| J o’ O TR, Dt
Pt -prer — faguditen W Dete LTS T Sgraivee /,. Bete o 1
- Insp. K./3. Blue 83-11-01 ) i
COPIES 1O — Corigsa Ower — Awrs g PAGE
s O~ 05 Doy |

024118207, 130 71.9% 3037 T g 7



® -/  Rneruni JNTINUATION 19

’ VRLVRAINCENG —~w o ivciD

A’ > 203 22

BIN-8D NN

Province of Nova Scotia

7

ACTION TAKEN — MESURES PRSES

-——————

83-11-15

Prrscenan

|

————— e e

..A.G."'s Department and this was being forwarded and

Paul Cormier called and left message fox_- myself to call h

T [TEFIE . TP et e o —— - -

Later that morning I returned his call and he advised me
he and Mr, Sart} had met with the Speaker of the House,
— and advised him of what their audit
had revealed, ..He also advised_t'he_ Speaker agreed that the

matter should be brought to the attention of the Attorney

-.General's Department, .-Mr. Cormier_ advised that a _

letter had been drafted to Mr. Gordon Coles oh’.thg i
that he would attempt this date to arrange a meeting,

Mr. Cormier phoned back later and advised that Mr. Gordon
Coles was out of town this week and tentative arrangements
were made with his Secretary to meet at 2 pP.m. on Tuesday,
the 22na4.

Mr. Cormier called and left a message for me to phone him,
I phoned Mr, Cormier at approximately 1:45 P.m. and he
advised he had been in conversation with the Speaker,

—_ . _ and~ Was concerned as he would be

out of town commencing Saturday the. 19th unti} Saturday
the 26th and felt an.obligation -£0.2dvige the Premjer on _ _

this matter as soon as possible., I advised Mr. Cormier

T . am .
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| P that I saw no problem with G 2¢vising the
. _prior to h:ls qoing away and Mr. Cormier advised
' that unless we heard to the contrary. this is the course
] ; of action that would be taken and a neeting would stil}l
be slated with the Attorney General's Department for 2 P.!
- - -Tuesday,  the 22nd.. p ke § - T
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ACTION TAKEN — MESURES PRISES

Met at Auditor General'g office with Mr, A, Sarty, Mr.

Cormier, Mr. G. Cole, Mr. G. Gale, Supt, MacGibbop and
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T ’ Officer 1/c C.1.p, CONPIDENTIAYL,
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| 83-203
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SUBJECT

MEMORANDUM fIOTE DE SERVICE

22

4

oser Assistance to Auditor General
Province of Nova Scotia

2.

Forgery = Sec, 325(1) c.c.

Utter Porged Oocument - Sec. 326(1) (b) c.c.
False Pretence - Sec. 320(1) (a) C.c.
Fraud - Sec. 338(1) (a) c.c.

Breach of Trust - Sec. 111 c.c.

Case IV . Double billing under tvo Acts,

Cagse ¥ = Biling for Unauthorized expenmes

re: 35 mile limie,

Case vI - Constituency office in location owned
by related person (several instances).

from the information
- ,Zup-,l..ied, they did not :ppear to b

o k—ﬁéﬂm
Officer in Charge
Commercial Crime Section
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Telephone call from Paul Cormier, Deputy Auditor General, N

C— — — -

He advised that yesterday, on the advice of the -and

)y he attended a meeting in

nnd W.J. MacLean. He said

Speaker's office batween

that he had no input at the meeting and felt that he was pl
there as a "sitting duck. * He stated that -apprﬁise

MacLean of the entire situation as it related to him and as
him for an explanation, (- had the information in a

report dated 83 11 30, which was compiled by the Auditor

General's Dept. f.or the ;tto;-ney General. )---;Ia.;l-:,ean explain:
the matter by saying that his secretary compiled his expens:
statements and made out the receipts_to cover F!’_‘e expenses.
MacLean said that he incurred all of the expenses claimed a;
that they related to his staying in an apartment in Halifax
with a friend. With respect to t;he receipts, they were only
made up to expedite the claims, and it was his secretary whc
made them up. Cormier stated that.:— appeared to accep
this explanation. He stated that_— will be interviewi

— next, in the near future.

Cormier advised that - is reporting the results of his

investigation directly to the beputy A.G., Mr, G, Coles. Cc
is not interested in having the matter 1nvastigat"d by the
P P},l)ice. Mr. G. Gale is not opposed to a Police i vestigatio
o~ Topm: A 5
0 i Haipr WDy Dmm gt
= - — e Suriavsiva g s Bt
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~although he will go along with Coles' wishes,
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- wen [ - —

From the infomation supplied by Cormier,

-—

it would appear

- —

that any chances for asuccesstul Police investigation are

being aeriously_ hampered by —mveatiqation. ~
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on 83-10-21,

84-03-28 r This matter came to our attention

S through Arnoilq Sarty, Auditor General, N, S. The C.1.p

and C,0, "y~ Division were made aware of the details, ,

of the Dept. of the Attorney
were apprised of the matter,

were to be awajited from the Dept,

reported, ana Officials

General, N, S. Instructio,

of the A.G. re a poli

investigation. To date, instructions have not been

received ang the C.I.B.O. is aware of the situation,
file wil) remain oPen pending release of the "Report
of the Auditor General, March 31, 1984"

Account" for the Province,

and the "Public

)
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matter to the attention of the Police,
General N.s. wWas‘to review the matter an

re request for Police investigation.
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Novembe}-14, 1983

Mr. Gordon F. Coles, Q.C.
Deputy Attorney General
Province of Nova Scotia
Halifax, N.S.

Dear Mr. Coles:

Attached is a letter to you from Mr. A.W. Sarty, dated
October 28, 1983, which was the last work day in which he
served as Auditor General.

This letter was held, on his instruction, until such time
as he was able to review the situations with the Speaker of
the House, through whose department the expense accounts were
processed. It was not possible to meet with Mr. Donahoe until
last week, because he was out of the country for an extended
period. The meeting with him took place on November 10th.

Mr. Sarty would like to meet with you to review the
situations revealed by this audit.

I telephoned you this morning to arrange a suitable
meeting time, and in your absence have tentatively scheduled
one for Tuesday, November 22, 1983 at 2:00 p.m. in our office.

I will be in contact with you on Monday, November 21, to
confirm the suitability of this arrangement.

Yours very truly,

=

O. Paui Cormier
OPC/nm Deputy Auditor General
Attl
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October 8, 1983
lf r

Mr. Gordon F, Coles, Q.C.
Deputy Attorney General
Province of Nova Scotia
Halifax, N.S.

Dear Mr, Coles:

In recent weeks my office has been conducting a rather
indepth audit of travel and living expense accounts for certain
classes of persons.

We uncovered two situations where, based upon the evidence
before us, it appeared to us that abuses of the system of a
fraudulent nature may have occurred.

We then arranged to meet with representatives of the
Commercial Crime Division of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police
to get their reaction and for them to tell us, whether in their
opinion, further action was indicated.

The R.C.M.P., have now responded to us. Based upon the .
evidence that we laid before them, they feel there is Justification
to take the matter further. I therefore request that a meeting
be arranged without delay with yourself and/or the appropriate
officers of your Department, so that we may present and discuss
with you, the information that is causing us concern.

Yours very truly,

AWS /nm Auditor G
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PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL January 13, 1984

T0: Mr. Gordon Coles, Q.C.

Deputy Attorney General
FROM: Arthur R. Donahoe ~

Speaker

On January 10, 1984, Mr. Paul Cormier, Deputy Auditor
General and I met 1in my office with Mr. Billy Joe MacLean,
M.L.A. The purpose of the meeting was to discuss with Mr.
MacLean the situation revealed by an audit carried out by
officials of the Auditor General's Department which showed that
Mr. Maclean had used receipt forms from the Shieling Motel in
Port Hawkesbury (owned by Mr. MacLean or members of his family)
in support of claims for accommodation expenses incurred by
him during trips to Halifax throughout the period from June
25 to November 30, 1982. Claims were made by Mr. MacLean for
some 35 trips during that period. The regulation in effect
at the time allowed a Member to claim for only 26 trips between
his constituency and Halifax while the House was not in session.

Mr. MacLean freely admitted that the receipt forms
used by him came from the Sheiling Motel. He told us that most
of the trips had been made in his capacity as Chairman of the
Legislature Select Committee on the Offshore. He said that
he had held numerous meetings with officials of various o)
companies doing business in the offshore region. These included
briefing company officials on the work of his Committee and
outlining to them matters about which his Committee would want
to have information during its public hearings. He also
indicated that he made some efforts to try to entice these
businesses to set up operations in the Canso Strait area of
the Province.

Mr. MacLean told us that earlier in the year while
the House was in session he had maintained a room at the Lord
Nelson Hotel. When he first came to Halifax after the session,

eoolf2



Mr. Gordon Coles, Q.C. January 13, 1984

T

he was told that the Lord Nelson would be able to accommodate
him only for one night. He Stayed for that night, left thi
following day, checked into the Chateau Halifax and was tg[
that he could stay there for only one day and on his thirg
in Halifax, was required to move to the Barrington Inn. He
indicated that he complained about this to a friend of his,
named who told him that he could stay at his
apartment during his next visit to Halifax. He
did so, and during later trips to Halifax, stayed at the
apartment of a a friend of his, who is
employed by a Company which has considerable dealings in matters
relating to the offshore.

d
day

Mr. MacLean advised us that he paid both
for the use of their apartments while he was
in Halifax. He told us that he stayed on only one occasion
with and that on all other occasions, he stayed
in apartment. Mr. MacLean had a key to the
apartment and on many occasions he would stay in it, even though
was not present at the time.

The procedure he followed was to keep track of these
trips. On his return to Port Hawkesbury, he would advise a
female employee of the motel, have her ring through receipts
for accommodation after first Clipping off the name of the motel
from the receipt form, and submit these receipts in support
of his expenses. He told us that at no time was payment made
to the Sheiling Motel, rather the payments were made to

He indicated that he can, if required, obtain a
letter from setting forth this arrangement and
indicating that was actually paid by MaclLean
for the use of the apartment.

I pointed out to Mr. MacLean that the regulations
did not permit him to claim for payment of expenses incurred
as Chairman of the Committee unless there was a meeting of the
full Committee. The most to which he was entitled was 26
constituency trips between Port Hawkesbury and Halifax and that
he had claimed for some 35 trips during the period under review.
I suggested to him that an adjustment might have to be made
to reduce the amount paid to him to the appropriate level.

The situation appears to be that had Mr. MaclLean
obtained receipts directly from and used them
to substantiate his claims, no problem would have arisen.
However, by using forms from his own motel and ringing them
through the cash register there, he created the situation which

o-o/3
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Mr. Gordon Coles, Q.C. January 13, 1984

-
-

gave rise to the current cause for concern. Mr. MacLean
indicated that he would obtain a letter from '
verifying the fact that he did in fact stay at

apartment and, insofar as fs possible, verifying the amotn}
paid by him to Mr. Cormier and I indicated that
it would be desirable if this letter could be obtained as
quickly as possible and I will be in touch with you further

as soon as it s made available to me.

I should add that Mr. Cormier has seen the contents
of this memorandum and agrees that it accurately sets forth
the discussion which took place at our meeting with Mr. MacLean.

ARD : nk
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fom  Gordon S. Gale, Q.C. Our File Rel;e_f;:e }4—?4-0002 'OLJ

Director (Criminal)

To Gordon F. Coles, Q.C. Your File Relerence
Deputy Attorney General

Subyect Date April 2, 1984

This is in regard to the material referred to us
by the Auditor General concerning the expenses of Billy Joe
MacLean. :

The period under review by the Auditor General is
June 25, 1982 to November 30, 1982, a period during which
the House was not sitting.

Members expenses are provided for in the House of
Assembly Act and in Regulations made by the Legislature
Internal Economy Board (LIEB) pursuant to Section 43 of the
House of Assembly Act. The LIEB Regulations are not Regulations
within the meaning of the Regulations Act nor are they publicized
and, in fact, the members are only given verbal notice of what
the Regulations contain.

The LIEB Regulations allow 26 return trips per year
for a member when the House is not sitting for the purpose of
conducting constituency business. The House was not sitting
during the period under review. There are two sets of LIEB
Regulations affecting this period the first from January lst to th
end of July which allowed a maximum of $100. a day and the
second from August 1lst to the end of 1982 allowing maximum
expenses of $85. per day. The material given to us shows that
Mr. MacLean claimed $85. per day plus mileage.

During the period under review Mr. MaclLean made 35
trips and according to the Speaker's memo most of the trips
were made in his capacity as Chairman of the Legislature Select
Committee on the Offshore. According to the Speaker's memo Mr.
MacLean has stated that he did lobbying to have firms located
in the Canso Strait area. When dealing with Committee work he
is not entitled to compensation unless there is a full committee
meeting. Perhaps his lobbying on these trips could be considered
to be constituency business but that is a matter for the LIEB
to decide and at most, it could only be for 26 trips leaving 9
on which he has wrongfully received payment.

2/
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Questions were raised by the Auditor General
concerning the supporting receipts, however Mr.! MacLean
has indicated that these were simply used as a means of
accounting for his expenditures as he stayed at grivate
accommodations. He was asked to obtain a letter ¢from

verifying the fact that he did stay with him
and verifying the amount paid by him to
We now have a short note from stating that
Mr. MacLean stayed with him approximately 40 or 45 days
between June and December’ and contributed in the area of
$2,000. as compensation.

The only charge that could be considered is that
of fraud under Section 338 of the Criminal Code. However,
since it is virtually impossible to prove the LIEB Regulations
or that Mr. MacLean had knowledge of them a charge could only
be proceeded with if he had not expended the money the claimed
for. In the material we have it appears that the claims are
not fraudulent in that he made trips and expended money although
there is no hard evidence as to how many trips he made or
how much he expended but on the other hand there is no evidence
on which to contradict his assertions. If one wanted evidence
to prove or disapprove his assertions then a police investigatio:
would be necessary.

In conclusion, it is a matter for the Speaker's Office
to determine under the LIEB Regulations which, if any, of the
trips are to be considered to be on constituency business. The
remainder of the trips will have to be paid back by Mr. MacLean
or he will have to be compensated from other sources. On the
information we have there is no basis for criminal charges 4n
that there is no prima facie case if one accepts the explanations
given by Mr. MacLean.

This matter brings up some points which should be
considered in the future.

1. The LTEB Regulations should be written in unambiguous
language because at present they are ambiguous as to
whether the total amount allowable per day includes
accommodations, meals and travel or whether travel is
separate.

2. The LIEB Regulations should be provided to each member
so that there is no question as to what they are allowed
to claim.

3. The Speaker's Office should monitor the accounts submitted
more closely to determine what they pertain to and whether
the member has exceeded the total expenses allowable in each
year for the matter being claimed.

. 3/
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14-84-0002-06
TO: Honourable Ronald C. Giffin, Q. C.

ROM: Gordon F, Coles, Q. C.

RE: Legislature Internal Economy Board

DATE: April 18, 1984

-------------------------------------------------------

Enclosed is Gordon Gale's summary report in the matter
of our inquiry into certain expenses claimed by the
Honourable Billy Joe MacLean,

I understand that there may be irregularities in respect to
other Members which may also be attributed to the fact that
these regulations are not written in the clearest language

and the manner in which they are communicated to the Members

We have communicated our opinion in the matter to the RCMP
who, although they were not formally asked to investigate
the matter, nevertheless were made aware of the concerns of
the Auditor General since Mr. Arnold Sarty had spoken to
them on an informal basis before bringing the matter to our
attention and raising his concerns with us.

Since the Speaker is Chairman of the Legislature Internal
Economy Board which is responsible for authorizing payment
of Members' travel and living allowances, I think it
appropriate that you communicate the results of our

investigation to him. I enclose a letter for your consider-

2



ation and suggest that it be copied to
Auditor General for h

is information.

the Deputy

L LB T
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CONFIDENTIAL

Wit

April 18, 1984 14-84-0002-06

Honourable Arthur R, Donahoe, Q. C.
Chairman

Legislature Internal Economy Board
House of Assembly

Halifax, Nova Scotia

Dear Mr. Donahoe:

As you are aware, Mr, Paul Cormier, Deputy Auditor
General, raised with the Deputy Attorney General the
concerns of the Auditor General concerning certain
statements for travel and l1iving allowances by the
Honourable Billy Joe MacLean and delivered copies of
certain such statements and supporting documentation
for our consideration and the taking of such action
which, in our opinion, the facts warrant,

Travel and 1iving expenses for monbers and officers

of the Legislative Assembly are provided for in the

House of Assenbly Act and the regulations prescribed

by the Legislature Internal Bconomy Board pursuant to
Section 43 of the Act. Although motions of the Board
pursnant to Section 43 of the Act are called regulations,
they are not regulations within the loanln{ of the
Regulations Act and therefore are not published in _
accordance with the Krovisions of such Act, nor is there
any requirement in the so-called regulations for them to
be copled to the Menbers or otherwise communicated to
them. Apart from verbal notice of such regulations,

the practice appears to be to leave the onus on each
Menber to inquire of the provisions of such regulations.

The period covered by the statenents referred to my staff

by the Deputy Auditor Genersl wvas June 25, 1982 to November
30, 1982, & period during which the House was not sitting,

'..2
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There were two sets of regulations applicable to this
period, the first from January 1 - July 31 which-authorized
8 maximun reimbursement of $100.00 per day and the second
regulation which repealed the earlier regulationd and was

in effect from August 1 to December 31 which rednced the
maximum reimbursement to $85.00 per day. The décumentation
under review claimed expenses to the amount of $85.00 per
day plus mileage during the period covered by the statements
and the statements for claim for reimbursement were supported
by statements setting forth amounts shown as paid for food
and lodging for each day covered by the claim period. Most
of these supporting statements totalled in excess of $85.00.

The Honourable Member's statements for the period included
thirty-five trips from his constituency to Halifex and raised
& question as to the asuthority for exceeding the maximum allow-
sble return trips per year for a Member when the House is not
sitting for the purpose of conducting constituency business,
namely twenty-six, and whether the statements in support of
;ho claim were sufficient to substantiate the claim for reim-
ursement, :

The Honourable Mr., Maclean, in response to such questions,
offered the explanation that the supportlnf statements were

not intended to be receipts for sccommodations but rather o
statement of moneys expended by him for accommodations plus
other expenses incurred on suc trips. That he had experienced
difficulty in arranging one night accommodation at twvo of the
Halifax hotels and when he had mentioned this to a friend his
friend offered him the use of his apartment and that of another
friend vhenever he was visiting in Halifax and that he paid.
them when he had use of their ug;rtlents. Mr. Maclean provided
8 letter in which the writer ac owledged receiving the approx-
imate sum of $2,000.00 during the period June - December 1982.
The amount shown for accommodations in the said statement of
:47.001¥0r day does not appear out of line for sccommodations

n Halifax, s

Mr. MaclLean also stated that although the statements were on
stationery of the Sheiling Motel, he used such as a natter of
convenience, clipping the Motel neme from the statement and
that these statements were not intended as receipts but rather
daily statements of moneys expended. Although some of the
other particulars in the supporting statements may raise
questions as to their need for the purpose intended, Mr.
MacLean's explanation of the nature and purpose of the su port-
ing statements and the letter from the n{artnont owner acknowl-
edging receipt for payment of accommodation refutes any other-
wise prima facle consideration of criminsl wrongdoing in the

...3
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matter., Whether Mr, Maclean {s entitled to claim mileage
in addition to the maximum per diem amount of allowable
reimbursement and entitled to reimbursement of gxpenses

for return trips to and from his constituency i excess of
the allowable maximum of tventy-six are matters§iyf an
accounting and administrative nature to be exanfned and
considered by you or others, particularly since8ir. MacLean
states that these extra trips were necessary as a result of
his involvement with matters relating to the Offshore.

It appears to me that the concerns raised by the manner in
wvhich Mr. Maclean submitted his claims for reimbursement

and possibly that of other MLA's are in part the result of
nnblgulty and conflict in the regulations and the informality
in which they are communicated to the Members. The regula-
tions in effect during the first eight months of 1982 were
different from those applicable to the last four months of
the year and the regulations in effect for 1983 are substan-
tially different from those in effect in 1982, Perhaps, at .
the risk of confusing the situation further, consideration:
ought to be given to a further review of the matter of
reimbursement to make certain that Members and Officials

are fairly and adequately compensated for ressonable and
necessary expenses snd limit the requirement of receipts to
expenses other than food and lodging, which may be more
properly provided for by stipulating allowable sums with
receipts only required to support expenditures in excess of
the sums allowable for food and lodging.

Since the LIEB regulations are not ublished under the
provisions of the Regulations Act, I suggest that a copy of
current regulations be provided to each Member of the :
Legislative Assembly so there will be mo doubt that they -
are aware of current provisions in respect to such allowances
and expenses.

I further respectfully submit that your office should assign
someons to be responsible for examining such claims and to
advise that they are in compliance with the Act and regula-
tions before being submitted to you for npgroval. This would
pick up any accounting irregularities or claims for reisburse-
ment for expenses not provided for by hhe LIEB regulations

and enable them to be corrected before being submitted to

you,

Yours very truly

Ronald C. Giffin
€.c. Deputy Auditor General
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~most unusual — Cormler

By ALAN JEFFERS
Proviacial Reporter
Tuesday's election has effectively
silenced the province's financial
watchdog, who won't say whether be's
satisfied with a government-approved
explanation of a cabm! minister's
travel expenses
Because the issve is “so eontm
versial” Aoditor General Paul Cor-
mier will not say whether be's satis-
fied with an explanation of Culture,
Recreation and Fitness Minister Billy
Joe MacLean's travel expenses, which
the attorney geperal's department in-

mdomtnrrntumm

tigation.

“It was a most gnusual way to

document expense claims,” Mr. Cor
mier said in an interview about Mr.
Haclansc:phmmdupeuedo-
cumentation.

- At a press conference in Halifax
Friday, Attorney General Ron Giffin
nlu.sedale!:adated&prﬂll.lﬁﬂ
that he wrote to Speaker Art Donaboe
which details Mr. MacLean's explana-
tion of questions the auditor general's
department had about his expense do-

cumentation
Detailing the history of the case,
Mr. Giffin said after an auditor gen-
eral's department review of MLAs'
expense claims, then-aoditor general
Aroold Sarty “spoke informally on
two occasicos with the RCMP, and

expense ¢laims of only one MLA.”

That's a contradiction of what
Mr. Cormier, whowualhmeei
ings, said.

He said be and llr Sarty dis-
cussed six MLASs’ expense claims with
the RCMP, although only two or three
claims warranted discussion with po-
lice. '

“Some of them were significantly
less serious than others and we
wouldn't bave consulted the RCMP on
some of them,” he said, adding Mr.
Sarty “was concerned with two and
maybe a third "

But Mr. Giffin sald: “At no time

did either the RCMP or the aoditor
geveral raise with my department
any question concerning the expenses
of any MLA other than the one MLA
referred to in my letter of April 18.”
Mr. Giffin wrote in the letter that
when Mr. MacLean was asked about

- certain documentation, *“he stated

that although the statements were on
statiopery of the Sheiling Motel
(owned by a member of Mr. Mac-
Lean’s family), bhe used such as a
matter of convenience, clipping the
motel name from the statement and
that these statements were pot in-

Mr. Giffin wrote that Mr. Mac-
Lean's explanation “refutes any oth-

'| erwise prima facie consideration of

criminal wrongdoing in the matter.”
Mr. Cormier said because of the
timing of the election, Nova Scotians

will have 10 wait for his annpal re-
port to find out whether his depart- -
ment is satisfied with the expl—

He said his office still considers
the method of documentation outlined
in the letter “most unusual.”

He said if be comments now, be
roﬂdhmumppoﬂingomdde
or the other, which be does pot want
to do.

Mr. Cormier promised to make “a

| more definitive” statement by lhe

time his report is tabled during the
regular session of the legislature,
‘which usually starts in February.

Mr. Giffia wrote that concerns
about Mr. Maclean's expenses “are
in part the result of ambiguity and
conflict In the regulations and the in-

. formality in which they are communi-
cated to the members.”

The attorney general told report-
ers he has initiated legal action
against Liberal leader Sandy Camer-
on because b. “impugned my integri-
ty. And worst of all, they (Mr. Camer-
on’s charges) bave called into question
the administration of justice in Nova
Scotia.”

Contacted last night, Mr. Camer-
on said Mr. Giffin's decision on Mr.
MacLean's expenses constitute a con-
flict of interest because the two men
are political colleagues.

He refused to back down l‘rorans
stance and said be would not be ins
timidated by threats of lawsuits. -

Earlier this week Mr. Camemd
first accused the attorney genera‘lq
department of blocking an investigas
tion. He later said Mr. Giffin's departs
ment delaycd acting on the request of
the auditor general’s department. "

g
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. - January 4, 1985

Mr. 0. Paul Cormier, FCA
Auditor General

4th Floor

Hollis Building

Dear Mr. Cormier:

Re: Honourable William J. MacLean

1 have held two meetings with Honourable Willfam J.
MacLean respecting the matters rajsed in your report to me
of November 29, 1983. Six items were raised in your report,

one of which, relating to documentation supporting e =
made by Mr. Maclean has been otherwise dealt with. —
I will deal w e other ey

appear in your report.

Claims for accommodations and per diems appear excessive.

A review done subsequent to your report of November
29 {indicates that Mr. Maclean overclaimed for 17 trips during
1982. Mr. Maclean advises that he belfeves that most of these
trips were taken fn connection with work he was carrying out
as Chairman of the Legfslature Select Committee on the
Offshore. However, it would appear that they were not taken
in conjunction with committee meetings and accordingly, he
is not eligible for refmbursement for them. The total paid
to Mr. MacLean fn connection with these trips 1s $4,437.53.
A review of the claims indicates that $2,196.40 of this was
with respect to mileage paid to Mr. MacLean. 1 have discussed
the matter with him and it has been agreed that he will
reimburse the mileage portion of $2,196.40.

Apartment rental charges.

The apbarent overclaim of $913.00 will be reimbursed
by Mr. Maclean.

.../2




Mr. 0. Paul Cormier, FCA . January 4, 1985

Accommodation charges overclaimed.

The overclaim of $120.00 will be refmbursed by Mr.
Maclean.

Overpayment due to error in extension.

Mr. MacLean will reimburse the overpayment of $360.00.
Constituency expense paid twice.

Mr. MacLean will repay the duplicate payment of $500.

Payments to constituency office questionable.

As you know, at the relevant time the regulations
did not prohibit reimbursement for payment of rental of a
constituency office made to a company of which the member was
a shareholder. Accordingly, no repayment will be made by Mr.
MacLean in connectfon with this ftem.
The revised regulations in effect as of January 1, 1985 no
lTonger permit this type of arrangement.

The total reimbursement from Mr. MacLean thus amounts
to $4,089.40. Of this amount, $2,500.00 has been repaid by
way of deduction from Mr. Maclean's 1985 indemnity and expense
allowance and the balance will be deducted from expense claims
made by him fn 1985, I expect the amount will be fully repaid
before March 31, 1985.

. I trust this s satfsfactory, however, should anything
further be required, please do not hesitate to let me know.

Yours very truly,

Arthur R. Donahoe .
Speaker

ARD:nk
cc: Hon. William J. MaclLean
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il Auditor General PO Box 783
. Hotax, Novs Scolis

Japuary 8, 1985

Honourable Arthur R. Donahoe,Q.C.

Speaker
House of Assembly. 5
province of Nova Scotia

Bllifl!. 'usc
Dear Nr. Donahoe:

NOTE: Two paragraphs deleted from this page, because
they do not pertain to Mr. Maclean. .

]

I would also like .to acknowledge your letter of Jasuary 4,
1985, relating to the expense claims of the Honourable
villiam J. Naclean, {ncluded in our report to you of November
29, 1983, You {ndicate the first item described in our
Claims Supported By Questionable Receipts®.

report,"Bxpense

has been othervise dealt with, and is pot considered in this
letter. )

You have dealt vith the remaining six items, pamely:

. I ‘ % :
1) claims for accommodations and per diems appear excessive; -

2) apartment rentai.chlrges;
3).accommodstion charges overclaimed;
4) overpayment due to error in extention;

5y constituency expense paid twice; and
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1 an pleased to accept your explanation for the first and
sixth items noted above, and your indication of reimburse-
ment arrangements for number one to five inclusive, as a

satisfactory resolution of these six items relating to the

expense claims of Nr. Maclean.

NOTE: One paragraph deleted from this page, because J
it does not pertain to Mr. MacLean.

Yours very truly,

0. Panul corﬂier. P.C.l-
Auditor General

OPC/nm
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By ALAN JEFFERS

Provincial Reporter
.+ A provincial cabinet minister and

former Tory MLA involved in last

year's travel expense controversy
were gingled out in the auditor gen-
eral’s report made public Wednesday.

Auditor General Paul Cormier is
pot satisfied with ap explanation
given by Culture, Recreation ahd Fit-
pess Minister Billy Joe Maclean
" about questionahble travel expenses
" and said that former Sackville MLA
¢ Malcolm MacKay was wrongly
$34.454 in travel and accommodali
' expenses over a 3'a-year-period

Mr. Cormier and former auditor’

general Arpold Sarty conducted an
audit of members' expenses in 1983
that turned up expense documentation
of Mr. MacLean's that “in the opinion
of the then auditor general, was ques-
tionable as to its authenticity and ap-
propriatepess.”

Alfter meetings with RCMP the
matter was left in the hands of the at-
lorney general's department and then
later excused by Attorney Geperal
Ron Giffin after Mr. Maclean ex-
_plained his expense claims.

Acknowledging In bis report that
it is not his responsibility to make le-
gal judgments, Mr. Cormier said he
finds it “difficult to accept the expla-
nations and documentations provided -
. by the mmberlnmponuwowau-
dit findings "

See REPORT page 16

. Malcolm MacKay

. .o (Loanswes U
.. "H b my opimon, that the doce-

mentation employed and the explana-

. Uons provided by Lhe member (Mr.
" MacLezn) for certaln expense claims

-
-

-

are inappropriate for the expenses
claimed and wnacceptable from an
audit standpoint.” -,

Io an interview, Mr. Cormier said
be “can't second guess” govemmcr.t:
decision about Mr lhflun “It's not
wp to me to say.” .

Mr. MacLean usef expense state-
ments from & motel owned by a fami-
ly member, with the letterheads re-
moved, and 3aid when questioned that
be imended them to provide an out-
line of how much was spent, and pot
to be receipts.

When Liberal leader Sanéy Cam-
eron beard about the audilor general's

‘queries during the campaign, be said

the government was obstructing jus-
tice. He also made charges about five
other members whose problems, ac-
cording to the auditor geperal. were
due to “inadvertence, clerical error or
misinterpretation of entitlements.”
Mr. Cameron, who lost his seat in
the election, said in en interview after

© the report was made public that he

fecls be has been vindicated by the

auditor general and that there are

prob.lem.s with the justice syslem in
the proviace.

" Mesnwhile, the legislature's inter-
na] economy board, which is entirely

. myde wp of Conservalive members,

decided that Mr. MacKay, who also |
was pot re-elected in the election,

. should pay back $7,024, because “the

responsibility for this situation was 2

pot entirely the member's,” Mr. Cor-

mier writes in the report. Mr.,Mac-

Kay claimed expenses as an cut-of-
town member even though be did pot

live far enough from the House 1o Uo :

2.
Speaker Arthur Donahoe told re-
porters that Mr. MacKay has been
contacted about repaying the mooey.
and while be has not yet received a
reply, be s confident be will sooa

Mr. Cormier 3aid the decisic to
make Mr. MacKay repay onoly last
year’s expenses B “pot inappropri-
ate”

“The Speaiisr has requesied re-
payment for only ihai portion of his
expenses paid during 1984 wher he
esed an improper residence address.”
Mr. MacKay used an address that
made him eligible for extra expeases
even though be lived elsewhere.

Speaker Donahoe said the expense
problems were largely due to regula-
tions that were unclear at best and
that for the most part, the problems
could not happen again

67%‘:5 ‘//g ‘ JY_ §H_0602- 66
“Report detalls _
-expense scandal
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Leader of the 1809 Bartngton Sireet

: Sute 1212, Bank of Commerce B
Opposition RO Boa 723 "
Hadax Nova Scotia
KU 273 !
L]
April 29, 1985 RRAE

Chief Superintendent Campbell Reid
Royal Candian Mounted Police

P.0. Box 2286 :
Halifax, Nova Scotia

B3J 3E1

Dear Chief Superintendent Reid:

RE: RCMP Investigation - MLA Expense Claims

I have raised questions in the House of Assembly
concerning the expense claims submitted by several MLA's,
including Billy Joe Maclean. The
purpose of raising this issue is to ensure all Nova
Scotians are treated equally before the law.

The Premier of the province and the Attorney General
refuse to take any action. This leaves the clear impres-
sion MLA's are above the law. This is wrong and must be
corrected.

I have specifically requested the Attorney General, who
is the Chief Law Enforcement Officer of Nova Scotia, to
cause an investigation into the expense claims. He has
refused to take any action whatsoever and has merely said
the RCMP is free to investigate if it so wishes.

The Premier and the Attorney General's response to this
serious matter is totally unsatisfactory to me and my
fellow Nova Scotians. Accordingly, I hereby request an
RCMP investigation into the expense claims of

Billy Joe MacLean. If it is necessary for me
to file a formal complaint to start the investigation,
would you please advise.

If there is anything further that need be done to cause
such an RCMP investigation, may I hear from you as soon

as possible. R.C. M. P. [ E@EHQ?E‘@

HALIFAX, N.S.
AFR SU_
PR 2D S )
g x CRE ) £EC
ent J. Maclean Y ﬂ ______ C/Supt. comm;:L 'I:\;‘LXICI'?:Hg s

C. 0. "H" Dwision
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CANADA
MAGISTERIAL DISTRICT OF THE PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA

This the information and complaint of Nigel M. Green of Halifax,
in the County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, for and on
behalf of Her Majesty the Queen, hereinater called the
Informant.

to believe and does believe that
William Joseph MacLEAN

of Port Hawkesbury, County of Inverness, Province of Nova Scctia,
at or near Halifax in the County of Halifax, Province of Nova
Scotia, between the lst day of-January. 1982, and the 1st day

of March, 1986, did by deceit, falsehood, or other fravdulent

means defraud Her Majesty the Queen in the right of the Province

of Nova Scotia, of monies in excess of one thousand dollars
(1,000.00) by submitting Statements of Travel and Living Allowances
for Members and Officers of the Legislative Assembly for
reimbursement, contrary to Section 338(1)(a) of the Criminal

Code;

AND FURTHER THAT William Joseph MacLean at or near Halifax,
County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between the lst

day of March, 1982, and the 30th day of June, 1982, did use
documents, to wit: receipts signed by Maureen O'Leary or Gordon
Grady, as though they were genuine, knowing that the documents
were forged, contrary to Section 326(1)(b) of the Criminal Code;

AND PURTHER THAT the said William Joseph MacLean at or near
Halifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between

the 1st day of August, 1982, and the 30th day of September, 1983,
did knowingly make false documents, to wit: receipts purported

to be signed by Roberta MacKinnon with intent that they be

acted upon as genuine and thereby did commit forgery, contrary
to Section 325(1) of the Criminal Code;

AND FURTHER THAT the said William Joseph MacLean at Or near
Ralifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between

the 1st day of August, 1982, and the 30th day of September, 1983,
did use documents, to wit: receipts purported to be signed by
Roberta MacKinnon as though they were genuirne, knowing that the
documents were forged, contrary to Scction 326(1)(b) of the
Criminal Code:



AND PURTHER THAT the gaid William Joseph MacLean at or ncar
Halifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between
the lst day of June, 1982, and the 30th day of November, 1982,
did knowingly make false documents, to Wit: receipts purported
to show charges for accommodations with intent that they be
acted upon as though genuine and did thereby commit forgaory,
contrary to Section 325(1) of the Criminal Code; <
AND FURTHER THAT the said William Joseph Maclean at or near
Halifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between
the 1st day of June, 1982, and the 30th day of November, 1982,
did use documents, to wit: receipts purported to show charges

documents were forged, contrary to Section 326(1)(b) of the
Criminal Code;

AND FURTHER THAT the said William Joseph MacLean at or near
Halifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between

the 1st day of October, 1983, and the 31st day of December, 1984,
did knowingly make false documents, to wit: receipts purported

to be signed by Joan Briggs with intent that they be acted

upon as though genuine and did thereby commit forgery, contrary
to Section 325(1) of the Criminal Code;

AND PURTHER THAT the said William Joseph MacLean at or near
Halifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between

the 1st day of October, 1983, and the 31st day of December, 1984,
did use documents, to wit: receipts purported to be signed by
Joan Briggs as though they were genuinc knowing that the
documents were forged, contrary to Section 326(1)(b) of the
Criminal Code:

AND FURTHER THAT the said William Joseph MacLean at or near
Halifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between

the 1st day of Janvary, 1985, and the 28th day of February, 1986,
did knowingly make false documents, to wit: receipts signed by
Frances De Coste with intent that they be acted upon as though
genuine, and did thereby commit forgery, contrary to Section
325(1) of the Criminal Code;

AND FURTHER THAT the said William Joseph Maclean at or near
Halifax, County of Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, between

the 1st day of January, 1985, and the 28th day of February, 198¢,
did use documents, to wit: receipts signed by Frances Decoste

as though they were genuine knowing that the documents weram

48



SWORN before me this
day of April, 1986,

at

in the County of
Province of Nova Scotija.

--------------------------

Informant

.......
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Mr. Norman Clair,

Crown Prosecutor's Office,
The Law Courts,

1815 Upper Water Street,
Halifax, Nova Scotia.

B3J 187

Dear Norm:

Re: The Queen v. Billy Joe MacLean

U7-2806-077//-5&
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PURDY'S WHARF TOwWER ONE
1989 UPPLR WATER STREZCT

HALIFAX, CANADA

CORALSPONDENCE

P.0.80x 997

HALIFAX, CAMADA 83J 2x2
1 -

TELEPHONE (®#02) 420-3200

TELECORICR (802) 429-3831
TELEX tm-nus

DINEET DiaL (902) e20- 3314

OUR FILE REFERENCE:

April 28, 1986

The above matter having now been scheduled for
Preliminary Inguiry for five days commencing on the 1l4th

of October, 19

6, I think that it {s imperative that in

order for we of the defence to prepare for the preliminary

bK any of those witnesses together with any documentation
tha

t will be tendered.

It has always been the pPractice of the Attorney
General's Department to make full disclosure for the defence
for it hes a ways been their attitude that "the Crown has
]

nothing to hide'.

I appreciate that you are somewhat concerned
about my client bringinﬁ pressure upon certain witnesses
a

but let me assure you t

t if in fact he does so the Crown

has the remedies available in order to Prosecute him further.

He has assured me that he will not contact any of the witnesses
to be called other than for personal businesses that these
witnesses may be involved with which are of concern to

my client.
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I once again am making a request of the Crown
to disclose to the defence their case well in advance of
the October 14th date in order that we may properly prepare
ourselves, :

-

There are, of course, fringe benefits for doing
same and that being that once assessing the case and ghe -
evidence to be called we may be able to shorten the *
Preliminary Inquiry considerably. s

I would once again ask that you reconsider my
request and advise me as to your position.

Joel E/| Pink
JEP/nm ,

CC: Billy Joe Maclean
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September 2, 1986
WITHOUT PREJUDICE

Mr. Norman Clair,

Crown Prosecutor's Office,
The Law Courts,

1815 Upper Water Street,
Halifax, Nova Scotia.

B3J 187

Dear Norm:

Re: Billy Joe Maclean

Further to my several telephone conferences with
you I wish to now confirm that I have instructions from
my client which are as follows:

That he would be willing to plead to two
counts of uttering, namely: Roberta McKinnon
(#4) and Joan Briggs (#8).

In return for my client Pleading guilty to these
two counts the Crown will withdraw the other counts plus
they will ask for fines, which will be discussed between
counsel.

I look forward to a favourable reply.

JEP/nm
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'September 8, 1986

Mr. Martin Herschorn

Director (Prosecutions)
Department of Attorney General
P.0. Box 7

Halifax, Nova Scotia

B3J 2L6

Dear Mr. Herschorn:
Re: Billy Joe Maclean

Multiple Charges of Fraud, Forgery & Uttering

The RCMP investigation with regard to Mr. Maclean
covers a period from October 6, 1981, and includes up
until February 28, 1986. During this period it would
be submitted that a total of fifty four statements of
travel and living allowance were submitted of which at
least 33 of them are fraudulent by virtue of them being
supported in whole or in part by receipts that have been
found to be totally false, deliberately erroneous or
bearing forged signatures.

The information count relating to the dates
of March 1lst through until the 30th of June 1982 relate
to what are known as Sommerset receipts. During that
period  Mr. MacLean submitted six statements for
reimbursement that related to lodgings he had rented
at the Sommerset Place apartments in Halifax. The rental
agreement shows that the agreed upon price was $ 513.50
per month. Claims over that period were submitted in
the amount of $ 605.00 per month. One of the witnesses
prepared to testify that at least she signed three of
them knowing full well that the padded price was included.
The receipt for the month of January was originally written
bearing February dates and the receipt for the month

/2
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Mr. Martin Herschorn 2 September 8, 1986

of February appears to have originally been dated February
17th. In fact Mr. MacLean did not Stay in the apartment
in January, although he made claim for same. Given that
he would be entitled legitimately to expenses and taking
into account the inflated receipts provided to support
such claims, it would be estimated that an overpayment
of § 2030.00 was received by Mr. MacLean.

With regard to the offence of forgery and
uttering between the 1st of August, 1982 and the 30th
of September, 1983, McLean submitted 11 claims for
reimbursement for expenses incurred in maintaining a
constituency office at the rate of § 500.00 per month
and in support of these claims provided eight original
receipts and three copies from Bluenose Enterprises
Limited, each one being signed by
Regulations during this period of time provided that
a member could claim reimbursement of § 250.00 per month
for constituency €xpenses and a further $ 250.00 a month
for office space, secretarial work, etc., if supported
by proper 'receipts.’ Regulations also went on to
stipulate that the entitlement does not apply for rental
of space in a members residence or a property owned by
a member or his family.

Bluenose Enterprises Limited was incorporated
in 1962 showing officers and directors being William
J. Maclean, President, and Glenda MacLean, Secretary.

who proportedly signed the receipts
in support of such claims appears to be the Manageress
of the Carriage House Tavern in Port Hawkesbury which
is also owned by Billy Joe MacLean. She appears to be
the only in the area and has been shown
the original receipts, 8 in number, which she denies
signing. She advises that during this period of time
Mr. Maclean did have a constituency office for
approximately 2 hours every Saturday morning which was

by Mr. MacLean at that time. advised
that she had rnothing to do with the management or business
of the Shealing Motel. On the basis of the forged
documents, a total of § 7500.00 was reimbursed to Mr.
MacLean.

With regard to counts 5 & 6 relating to the
offence of forgery and uttering between the dates of
the 1st of June, 1982 angd the 30th of November 1982,
Mr. Maclean submitted six more claims in two batches

ees/3



Mr. Martin Herschorn 3 September 8, 1986

of three claims each. The first batch covered the period
of June to September 26th and the next period up and
to including November 30, 1982. The statements were
characterized by a great number of return trips being

29 days living allowance for attending committee meetings
were included in the statements. In support of this
documentation 40 receipts with no identifying source

the Shealing Motel, then owned by Billy Joe MacLean.
Evidence would show that Billy Joe never did stay at
his own motel which is located some 5-10 minute drive
from his own residence. Also from records maintained
at the speakers office and elsewhere, it was determined
that during this time frame the offshore committee held
only one meeting and the tourism committee three of which
only two Mr. MacLean actually attended. Based on these
fraudulent receipts, it is estimated that an overpayment
of § 13,663.00 was paid which would include the overpayment
not only of living allowance and room rental, but also
trips claimed but allegedly never taken.

Counts 7 and 8 relating to both forgery and
uttering between the 1st day of October, 1983 and the
3lst day of December, 1984, involving one
relates to claims by Mr. MacLean for constituency expenses
to the maximum allowable limit. Each of these statements
was attached to the original receipt indicating an

acknowledgement by of having received $ 250.00
in 1983 and $ 260.00 in 1984 per month form Mr. MacLean.
All of the receipts endorsed by are forgeries.
They have been examined by and she denies

that she wrote any of the signatures on them. Mr. Maclean
set up a constituency office in the Central Trust building
in Port Hawkesbury. acknowledged that she
assisted in setting up the office and worked there to
assist Mr. MacLean but has not done 80 since mid 1983.
She now works for the federal member of parliament and
was the progressive conservative constituency secretary,
not assigned to Mr. Maclean. To her knowledge Mr. MacLean
had no secretary at that point, then or now. It is
estimated that due to the submittal of the forged receipts
an overpayment of $ 2320.00 was made.

With regard to Counts 9 and 10 relating to
the offence of forgery and uttering between the 1st day

«../4
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Mr. Martin Herschorn 4 September 8, 198¢
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of January 1985 and the 28th day of February, 1986,
involving Frances Decoste, again it appears that the
receipts for claims during this period are forgeries.
The claims were submitted in support of constituency
secretarial expenses signed by

is Billy Joe Maclean's housekeeper and has no secretarial
skills. In fact, she is semi-literate. The receipts,

some of them signed by were signed in blank
by her and had no knowledge as to what was filled in
by the persons taking them. recalls two

incidents, once during the winter of 1984 and 1985 and
the winter of 1985-86. Mr. MacLean had her sign these
documents on the kitchen table in his house in his
presence. Also present during the signing was Mr.
MacLean's executive assistant, Allan Wilson. The receipts
put in by Mr. MacLean by support the constituency expenses
during this time also are fraudulent and the estimated
overpayment is $ 3120.00.

I trust this will explain various schemes used
by Mr. MacLean in some detail used to pad his living
eéxpense account. If any further information is required,
pPlease do not hesitate to contact me as I hold the complete
RCMP brief given to me by Sgt. Green.

Yours truly,

.,é\f)ta/n,w A[c?"&.ml
Norman Clair
Asst. Prosecuting Officer
NC/rrph

Dictated but not read.
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From Martin E. Herschorn Our File Reference
Director (Prosecutions) "o

To Honourable Ronald C. Giffin Your File Reference
Attorney General

Subject Q. vs William Joseph (Billy Joe) Maclean  Date September 9, 1986

I enclose a copy of the Information wherein Billy Joe Maclean
is charged with ten counts of fraud, uttering a forged document and forgery.
Also attached is a letter dated September 2, 1986 to the Assistant Prosecuting
Officer, Norman Clair, from Defence Counsel, Joel Pink, in which Mr. Pink
confirms a plea bargaining proposal.

Norman Clair is seeking the views of the Department as to what
to accept by way of plea and direction a5 to the type of sentence which
the Crown should seek. | am attaching a copy of Mr. Clair's letter to me
of September 8, 1986 which summarizes the fraudulent activity which resulted
in these charges. | would appreciate an opportunity to discuss this matter
with you at your convenience.

—n € H

MEH:if
Encls,
c.c. Gordon F. Coles, Q.C.
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Our fie no: t

Mr. Norman Clair

Assistant Prosecuting Officer
The Law Courts

1815 Upper Water Street
Halifax, Nova Scotia

Dear Mr. Clair:

Our phone no; __iZﬂ-ﬂOH

September 11, 1986

Further to your letters of September 3rd and September 8th, 1986,

| would suggest the following as a guide in your subsequent discussions with
Joel Pink vis a vis plea and sentence.

The Department is of the view that a plea of guilty to the first count
of fraud would be more appropriate than the entering of one or more pleas
to individual counts of either uttering or forgery. In the event that this
is unacceptable to the Defence, the Crown should take the position that
Pleas of guilty should be entered to the 4 most serious uttering counts.

With respect to sentence, the Crown's position in these discussions
with Defence Counsel should include the following factors:

1. A fine, would appear to be the appropriate form of disposition.
As to the quantum, this should be substantial, in the range of
from $5,000.00 to $10,000.00,

2. Secondly, the Crown should seek an order for restitution with
respect to the total amount which can be ascertained as having
been defrauded by Mr. MacLean between January 1, 1982 and
March 1, 1986, It is my understanding that the figures referred
to In your letter of September 8th are estimates, rather than
Precise determinations. | would suggest that in consultation with
the R.C.M.P. and, if hecessary, the Speaker's Office or the
Department of Finance, the precise amount of the fraud be
determined and that figure utilized in future discussions concerning
restitution with Joel Pink. A representation by the Crown that

e/ 2
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restitution be made in the amount 80 determined would be a

pre-requisite to any negotiation with respect to plea and sentence
between the Crown and Defence. :

Yours very truly, Pt
o

Martin E. Herschorn
Director (Prosecutions)

MEH:if
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Department of ' )

The Law Courts '
Attorney General 1815 Upper Water Street

Office of Halifax, N.s. v
Crown Prosecutor B3J 187

N
424-4900, ext. 180'""
September 12, 198¢

Joel Pink, Q.cC.

Stewart, MacReen & Covert
P. 0. Box 997

Halifax, N.S.

B3J 2Xx2

Dear Mr. Pink:

RE: R. v, William (Billy-Jo) MacLean

Further to our telephone conversation of today's
date this letter will confirm that the Crown requests and
will accept guilty pleas to four counts of uttering in
favour of withdrawal of all remaining counts. My
instructions are to accept pleas to the four most serious
uttering counts, however, it appears that there is not much
difference between the monetary values alleged to be
fraudulently obtained in count two ang count eight. For

the sake of argument I would request guilty pleas to be"

entered to count four, count six, count eight, and count
ten. These charges relate to documents signed by Roberta
MacKinnon, documents used from the Sheiling Motel,
documents in the name of Joan Briggs, and lastly Frances
Decoste.

My position on sentence is ag 71 have
stated -- the Crown will ask for a fine in the range of
$5,000.00 to $10,000.00. I understand the $5,000.00 is
acceptable to you. Although the $5,000.00 is acceptable I
want it understood that my instructions are that I not be
bound to ask for that ‘and no more. as I suggested I was
Prepared to suggest a range and 1live whateveré the Court
Bees fit,

With regard to the question of restitution, I
sought further instructions and it ig the position of the
Department that they will not ask as a formal portion of
the sentencing that restitution be ordered. As you can

v e . [2
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Joel Pink, Q.cC. -2 - September 12, 19g¢

appreciate this- is a sensitive and high-profile matter
given Mr. MacLean's former position with the-. Provincial
Government. So that NO questions might be rajised as to any
inproprietary the Crown wi)) put before the Court the
amounts it feels have been defrauded. Withé regard to
obtaining the monies, I am advised that Mr. MacLEan will be
entitled to receive a pension by virtue of thé-fact of his
long standing as an M.L.A. and that the Government will
take actions with regard to retrieving monies from that
pension. To that end I have instructed the R.C.M.P. to get
in touch with the Auditor General's Department so that a

money to which Mr. MacLean would be entitled had the claims
been legitimate and the difference reflecting the fraud
incurred by the submission of the documents in question,

If this meets with the approval of yourself ang
your client, I would Ssuggest that the matter could be
concluded upon a date mutually agreed to by the parties or,
in the alternative, it could wait until the date of the
original preliminary hearing to be dealt with.

I trust the foregoing will meet with the approval
of yourself and your client and look forward to concluding
the matter as suggested.

Yours very truly,

Norman H. Clair
Asst. Prosecuting Officer
NHC/amb
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QUR FILL REFERENCE:

. September 15, 1986

WITHOUT PREJUDICE

Mr. Norman Clare,

Crown Prosecutor,

The Law Courts,

1815 Upper Water Street,
Halifax, Nova Scotia.
B3J 1S7

Dear Norman:

RE: Billy Joe MacLlean

Further to my telephone conversation with you on
the 15th of September, would you kindly confirm to me that
in your submission to Judge Atton if there is a guilty plea
to four counts of uttering and an agreed fine of $5000.00
total, that the Crown will not use the words fraud, forgery
or that my client personally benefited.

' If your submission was to take on the picture of
us submitting false claims which we knew were false and that
as a result of us submitting those claims the government paid
us so many dollars. The above is very important to my client
so if you would consider same I will then relate your response
to my client and confirm with you that we have a deal.

s very truly,

JEP/nm
CC: Billy Joe MacLean
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From Martin E. Herschorn M C/{ ® Ou Fite Reterence
Director (Prosecutions) 09-F¢-0SY 7-of
To File : Your File Reference

Subyect MMMMMM Dste September 16, 1986

On September 12th at 11:30, | was contacted by Norman Clair
who had been in receipt of my earlier letter concerning the Department's
Position vis a vis negotiations with counsel for Billy Joe MacLean in respect
to plea and sentence. Norman indicated that Joel Pink has now advised
him that his client is Prepared to plead guilty to four counts of uttering
and that the range of fine which the Crown would be seeking was acceptable
to him. Mr. Pink did indicate however that his client was not in a position
to make restitution.

| indicated to Norman that | would discuss the matter within the
Department and get back to him. | subsequently contacted the Attorney
General in Truro and discussed these developments. The Attorney General
indicated that with respect to restitution, the Province would have other
means of recovery of the defrauded monies, through access to funds Mr.
MacLean would be entitled to from the Province, i.e. pension funds or the
annual stipend. Hence, the Attorney General was of the view that the entering
of a plea of guilty to four counts of uttering with the Crown seekihg a fine
in the range of from $5,000 to $10,000 would be appropriate. This Information
was communicated to Norman Clair at 11:50 a.m.

On the afternoon of September 12th, | received a further call from
Norman Clair indicating that he had met with Joel Pink and that Joel was
seeking a firm representation from the Crown of a fine in the amount of
$5,000.00. | related this to the Attorney General by telephone in Truro.

He agreed that a Crown representation to this effect was satisfactory to
him,

MEH:if
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THE QUEEN vs WILLIAM JOSEPH MacLEAN A
mﬁc 21-
IN THE PROVINCIAL C OURT
CITY OF HALIFAX

HALIFAX, N.S., OCTOBER 3, 1986

MR. N. CLAIRE, for the Crown i ]
MR. J. PINK, for the Accused ;fi
BEFORE: JUDGE W.J.C. ATTON
MINUTES OF EVIDENCE

MR. PINK: Yes, if Your Honour Pleases, I am present this
morning with Mr. MacLean. As Your Honour has before you,
there was an Information containing ten counts. As Your
Honour will also note, there was an original election fo: a
Judge and Jury. Prior to dealing with the charges, I am’
letting Your Honour know exactly what Mr. MacLean will b‘
doing. I first of all ask that there be a re-election down
before Your Honour, on all counts.

MR. CLAIRE: The Crown consents to that re-election, Your

Honour.

THE COURT: Re-elects to Provincial Court. .. Are you ready
to enter a plea this morning, Mr. Maclean?

MR. PINK: Yes he is, Your Honour. If Your Honour pleases,
you will note that the ten count Information before you -
there will be o guilty plea entered on Charges 4, 6, 8, and
10. There will be not guilty pleas entered on all other
counts.

THE COURT: Guilty to Counts 4, 6, 8 and 10. Not guilty to:
Counts 1, 2, 3, S, 7, and 9.

MR. PINK: That is correct, Your Honour.

THE COURT: Mr. Claire ...

MR. CLAIRE: Your Honour, in view of the guilty pleas to the
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main charges in the Information, the Crown will withdraw the
remaining charges, that is, 1, 2, 3, 3 7, a;dj9.

THE COURT: The Crown withdraws 1, 2, 3, s, ?:Ennd 9....
Are you ready to proceed today, on the other matter.
MR. PINK: Yes we are, Your Honour.

MR. CLAIRE: Your Honoﬁr, in the sentencing matter with Mr,

MacLean - by way of background, I can advise this is a some-
what unusual case, in the fact of Mr. MacLean's positioﬁ.
He 18 a Member of the Legislative Assembly, for Inverness
South. He won the Provincial Election in October of 198f,
and was re-elected in November of 1984, 1In November of 1983
he was appointed Minister of Culture, Recreation and Fitne:u,
Minister in charge of the Administration of The Heritage
Property Act, and also Minister {n charge of the Administrat{¢
of the Lottery Act. He wWas reappointed to these posts in
November of 1984. And in addition to these duties, he also
was appointed as a Member of the Select Committee of the
Off Shore, in May of 1982. As a Member of the Legislative
Assembly, he, as all other Members, 1s entitled to compensa-
tion for travelling and living eéxpenses, which are set out
in the House of Assembly Act and {ts Regulations.
And Mr. MaclLean was defined as an Outside Member, meaning
that he lived more than 25 miles distant from where the House
of Assenbly sits, here in Halifax. He i{s a resident of Port
Hawkesbury, Nova Scotia. Each Outside Member 1s entitled to

it
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claim for return trips between the place of hi¥-residence
and the House, within the guide lines, and 1tjdées depend
whether the House i{s in session or not. The Lgi also stipu-
lates that a Member i{s entitled to reimbursement for expenses
actually incurred by him as a Member, i{n relation to the
provision of office space, equipment, secretarial service,
and travel within the electoral district. The way the claims
are made {s that reimbursement, for reimbursement, the Member
is required to submit a statement of travel and 1iving allow-
ance to the Office of the Speaker, usually on a monthly b;sic.
The staff of the Speaker's Office then check over the claims,
for compliance with the Regulations, and check the arithmetic
correctness of the calculations. The Regulations stipulate
that all claims for reimbursement for certain items must be
supported by proper receipts, and as long as the claim for
these types of expenses are supported by those receipts,
and appear normal or proper on the face, within the a11§wab1e
limits, the claims are processed for payment. The Speaker's
Office has no investigative arm to ensure the correctness of
the claims, and so the Speaker's office then depends on the
honesty and integrity of each Member making the claim, and
generally accept the claim at face value. The claim {s then
signed by the Speaker of House, or his designate, and sent
to the Finance Department for processing. Now with regards
to the four Counts that Mr. Maclean has pled guilty to:




10

15

20

25

67

plAC 21

4
The Count 4, relating to the uttering of forged documents,
between the 1lst of August, 1982, and the 30th: o£ September,
1983. Between this period Mr. MacLean aubmitted eleven
claims for reimbursement for expenses incurred in maintaining
& constituency office, at the rate of $500.00 a month. And
in support of these clafms provided eight original Teceipts
and three copies, from a Bluenose Enterprises Limited. Each
one of these receipts being signed by a Roberta MacKinnon,
The Regulations during this period of time Provided that a
Member could claim reimbursement of $250.00 a month, for
constituency expenses, and a further $250.00 a month for
office space, secretarial work, etc., if supported by the
Proper receipts. The Regulations also stipulated that entitld-
ment does not apply for rental of space {n a Member's residende
Or property owned by a Member or his family., Now members of
the Speaker's staff who Processed the claims advised that
they did not know at the time who owned Bluenose Enterpriles.
It turns out that Bluenose Enterprises Limited was incor-
porated {n 1962. The officers and directors of the company,
both between 1962 and 1982, were William J, MacLean, Presidend,
and Glenda MacLean, Secretary and/or Treasurer. Both of
Philpott Street, which i{s the address in Port Hawkesbury of
Mr. MacLean. It {g through this company that Mr. MacLean
Operates a Beverage Room, or Tavern, called The Carriage

House, in Port Hawkesbury, Roberta MacKinnon is the Hlnagcrels
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of that establishment, she has worked at the Tavern since
1972, and for the past five years has been tﬁe:ﬂanngeress.
As far as she's aware, she's the only Roberta ¢Kinnon {n
the area, and certainly the only one Hnrking{¥;} Bluenose
Enterprises. The office that she is awvare of, that Mr.
MacLean had at that tiﬁe, in the Port Hawkesbury area, is
one he had open for two hour period on Saturday mornings, at
the Sheiling Motel, which she advised she had nothing to do
with. When shown the receipts, and questionned, Mrs. .
MacKinnon examined them, and denied that ghe had signed them,
or had any part of them. The handwriting samples were
analyzed, and confirmed this fact. Mrs. MacKinnon also
advises that she has never been Mr. MacLean's political
secretary, and the only office she was aware of, {s the
Sheiling Motel. I can advise that during this perfod Mr.
MacLean was efther the owner or part owner, and had control
in the Sheiling Motel. The Auditor General has
recalculated the expense accounts, discounting the documents
complained of in this account, and an overpayment has been
calculated at $7,500.00. Which he has advised that $500.00
has been covered, now leaving a surplus of $7,000.00 overpay-
ment,
With regards to Count 6 - Mr. MacLean then submitted six
claims over the next period of time, that {s between June
and November 30th, 1982. The claims were submitted in two
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batches, of three claims each. The first bat¢i-covered the
period of June to September 26th, and the next Fovered the
period up until and including November 30th, 19B2. The six
statements are characterized by a great number of return
trips being claimed on each claim form, thirty-nine returm
trips in all, between Halifax and Port Hawkesbury, are claimed
in this time frame, as well as living allowances for fi(:een
days, and a further twenty-nine days living allowance, for
attending Committee meetings, were included on the statements.
In support, forty receipts with no identifying source wer;
submitted, each purporting to show a night's lodging. The
receipts are all identical, in each case identifying a
person as W.J. MaclLean, of Philpott Street, Port Hawkesbury,
as the person. The receipts attached to the earlier state-
ments included such detail as automobile make and license
number, room number, rate, date of arrival, and date of .
departure. Some of this material was omitted ﬁn the later
receipts. The earlier receipts were also signed by Mr.
Maclean, while the later ones does not include this. All of
the receipts, however, had been posted through a cash register
and the receipts, both the tape number and the actual folio
number on the receipts, were in sequential numbers, which
{ndicated that they were run through the machine at the same
time. As I indicated, Mr. MacLean was owner or part owner

of the Sheiling Motel at the time. It appears that the
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folios, or the receipts, were identical to tpg'receipts used ‘
by the Sheiling Motel, except that where thé name was on the
receipt, it appeared to have been cut off. I Eﬂm also advised
that the House was not in session at that time. in that {t
sat from February 18th to June 26th. It appears that this
claim overlapped the ﬂhguat, 1982, claim, in Count 4. A
recalculation based on the false documents provided by Mr.
Maclean, done by the Auditor General, shows an overpayment
to Mr. MacLean of $7,808,5S.

THE COURT: Is that just in relation to Count 6 - or a
combination of .... |

MR. CLAIRE: No, that's just Count 6, Your Honour. $7;000.00.
Count 4 - $7,808.55 on this Count.

With regard to Count 8 - Receipts provided by, or signed Joan
Briggs, between October of 1983, and 31 December, 1984. As

I indicated earlier, a Member was allowed to claim 3250.90,
for secretarial and office space, and an additional $250.00
with receipts. During this particular time period, nine
expense statements, actually ten; were submitted. Ome was
disallowed because it was the month previous to the election,
and because the Regulation was disallowed for all Members.
So, we're dealing with nine expense statements, submitted on
& monthly basis between October, 1983, and December, 1984.
Each claiming the maximum allowable constituency expense.

To each of these statements of claim wvas attached an original
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receipt, indicating an acknowledgement by Joan Briggs of
having received $250.00, that is in the 198§'ygar, and $260.0J
in 1984, which was the allowance in that tiie period. The
first receipt bears a notation, Constituencyﬁ%cretary. All
of these receipts are false. Mrs. Briggs va;?;sked to examinﬁ
the documents {n question, and categorically denied that she
wrote the signature Jd;n Briggs, or that the handwriting was
hers, nor had she given anyone permission to sign her name.
Again, handwriting analysis confirmed her statements. During
this time frame Mr. Maclean, I understand, operated his
offices {n the Central Trust Building, and still does, iﬁ
the Port Hawkesbury area. Mrs. Briggs herself assisted tn
setting 1t up, in December o;f 1983, and for a short leading
up into the 1984 election, that is one month I understand,
worked there, to assist Mr. MaclLean. Other than that, she
has not been his secretary since the close of the office in
the Sheiling Motel, {n mid 1983. Mrs. Briggs has advised
that she has received no moneys from Mr. MacLean in connectiog
with secretarial services during the time frame involved.
Again, the Auditor General, taking into account these false

documents, has recalculated the expense claims providea by

Mr. MacLean, and shows an overpayment of $3,610.00.

Count 10 - Again relates to constituency expenses, this time
in the name of Francis DeCoste. And the dates of this offenc*
include January, 1985, up to and including the 28th of
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February, 1986, Again, during this period Mr,‘yacLean
claimed the maximum allowable reimbursgement f;; constituency
secretarial expenses. To support, there wu.-;..g supporting
receipts in this period were House of Assembly official
receipts, constituency expense form - s new form that had
been provided. Each of these receipts, with one exception,
is handwritten. All are for the amount of $260.00, all
signed by Mrs. Francis DeCoste. It has been learned that
Mrs. DeCoste 1s, and has been for the past eight years, tne
full time housekeeper at the MacLean residence at Philpott
Street in Port Hawkesbury. She's an elderly lady, in her.
60's, who works six days a week. And I am told that lh;?
currently draws Unemployment Insurance benefits, to the tune
of $186.00, and supplemented by Mr. Maclean by a furthar
$75.00 a week for her housekeeping duties. The vnly consti-
tuency office that Mrs. DeCoste was aware of, in the immeQIate
area was the one at the Central Trust Building. She advised
that she has never visited there, and has no business
dealings as his constituency secretary there, or at the house.
She has advised that on the odd occasion she takes telephone
messages, other than that she is strictly the housekeeper.
She does not have the educational requirements to be a
secretary. Mrs. DeCoste admitted that on two occasions,
once during the winter of 1984-85, and sgain during the winter
of 1985-86, Mr. MacLean had her sign documents on the kitchen
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table in his house. She was able to describe the documents
in general, however she didn't know what they: were. And in
her opinion, they had been blank at the time chP signed them.
She advises she had difficulty in chat she reqires reading
glasses for this kind of work, but does not take them to work
when she's providing the housekeeping services, and did not
have them when she signed these documents. She advised that
they were signed in the presence of Mr. MacLean and his
Executive Assistant. There were between ten and twelve paperq
on each occasfon that she signed, and no explanation was 3
given to her as to what they were to be used for. As I |
indicated, Mrs. DeCoste 1is not his secretary, and althou{h
the documents were in fact signed by her, they were in blank,
and she was not signing them for the purpose of providing
receipts for secretarial services, and therefore are false,
in the meaning of the Act. A recalculation of Mr. Maclean's
expense accounts during this period show an overpayment of
$3,380.00. I might advise that the blank receipt book
signed by Mrs. DeCoste was found in Mr. MacLean's office in
Halifax., The secretary working for him at the time indicated
that she had been instructed by him to routinely take these
forms, fill them out, showing the maximum amount to be claimes
for secretarial services, and to submit them for payment,
which she had been doing. There were several blank forms
still in the book, to be used.
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The total overpayment, as calculated by the Auditor CGeneral,
for the Counts 4, 6, 8, and 10, 1s $21, 798.55 Those are
the facts that we put forward on this guiltx_Jiea.
MR. PINK: Just.,. In regard to these facts, there {s only;
one issue that I may Have in dispute - and that is, that my
client had no interest in the Sheiling Motel after foreclosure
by the Government, ‘in 1981,
MR. CLAIRE: We take no issue to that, Your Honour.
THE COURT: Very well, Mr. Claire....

MR. CLAIRE: Now, with regards to sentence, Your Honour.

The obtaining of these moneys, using the false documents,
Mr. Maclean given the position he holds in the Legislature,
I would suggest is a breach of trust of his public office,
shattering the faith and confidence of the public placed in
him. However, I would advise the moneys were not in the
nature of a trust account, where Mr. MacLean was responsible

and accountable to others who had placed the money in his

care, by virtue of his position as a M.L.A. or Cabinet
Minister. The offence of uttering forged documents, pursuant
to Section 326(1) of the Canadian Criminal Code make the
offender 1iable to a maximum imprisonment period of fourteen
years. In making a recommendation to this Court, the Crown

has considered the options of sentence that are open to the
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Court, including that of imprisonment. It is the function,
I would submit, of the Court to pass sentencé-sh Mr. Maclean. |

And it may also consider the same options as 11 sees fit,

I would submit that the number of Counts, fourjin all, that
he has pled guilty to, the nature of the offence, the period
of time over which {t was committed, are not favourable
factors to Mr. MacLean in the sentencing. The reasons and
principles of sentencing must be the guideline for the
sentencing Court, and as you are well aware Your Honour, a
sentence must take into account general deterrence to those
who may consider a similar ccurse of action, specific deter-
rence to the offender, that he will be dissuaded from recom-
mitting a similar offence, and lastly, but equally, the
rehabilitation of the offender. In the Crown's recommendatio
I have taken the following factors into consideration, before
making & recommendation, and I ask the Court also. Mr.
Maclean has no previous criminal convictions. By my calcéu-
lations, he 18 now presently 49 years of age. He has pled
guilty before a preliminary hearing or trial, saving the
Courts valuable time and money, and more perhaps to his
credit as well, saved the people who have worked for him,
the secretaries who have assisted him, the anguish of giving
evidence against him, in what I would suggest would be a
trying ordeal. As I understand it, he has resigned his post

as Cabinet Minister, which will have serious consequences to
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his political career, as well as the loss of face before his
colleagues in the House of Assembly. He has jlal-’sr.a damaged
his image and stature in his home community 6£ EPort- Hawkesbury
before the people he has to live with. I und.efr_stand he 1is
married, and has a family of eight children, six of which I
believe he 1s still sufaporting. I think {t {s important to

look at the offender, as what he is, as opposed to who he is.

The Crown feels that as a first offender, in all of the
circumstances, and taking into account all of the céneidera- |
tions, the Crown recommends a substantial fine, and would 1
recommend a minimum fine of $5,000.00 for all matters.
However, I would remind the Court of the provisions of Sectiod
646(2), where a fine only is not permitted in lieu of other
punishment. The remaining matter to be addressed, is that

of restitution. The Province of Nova Scotia will be seeking
the return of the moneys from Mr. MacLean, but it is not the
Crown's position, that a restitution order by way of prol.aatior.
is required. The reasons are that the Province at present
owes Mr. MacLean certain moneys by virtue of his status as
M.L.A. The salary of a Member of the Legi{slature in 1986
was $27,315.00. Each Member is allowed to take that amount
at the first of the year, in a lump sum payment, which I |
understand Mr. MaclLean did, for the year of 1986. He is still
& Member of the House, as I understand it, and will be
entitled to draw the same amount the beginning of 1987. Also,
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under the Members Retiring Allowance Act, I am advised that
there are provisions for holding back money from Members,
as they have done in Mr. Maclean's nituation.: It is broken
down into three areas - general contrlbutions;b} Mr. Maclean
have been held back, in the amount of $8,476.08. Moneys
taken from his expense account have been also held back, in
the amount of $3,816.6£. And by virtue of the fact, his
status as Minister, Executive Council funds have been held
back, in the amount of $6,226.09. As of October 2nd, 1986,
the total held back at this point i{s $18,518.81. I am
informed by the Province that they have retained sufficient
funds, and will be able to hold back sufficient funds, to
compensate the Province for the overpayments caused by the
false receipts supplied by Mr. MacLean. Those are my comments

Your Honour.

MR. PINK: If Your Honour pleases, Your Honour has this :
morning the difficult task, in light of the pleas of Mr.
Maclean, to now impose sentence upon him, after he has pleaded
guilty to four counts of uttering a false document as if they
were genuine. As Your Honour knows, the gist of the offence
under Section 326(1) is simply to use a document as authentic
which 1{s known to be false. The law of uttering a false
document does not include the element of fraud and/or for

personal benefit. My client maintains that at all times, in
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making the claims that he did, that there was no fraud, there
was no forging of signatures, and there was no-personal
benefit gained by him. Mr. Claire stated during his remarks
that the total amount paid to Mr. Maclean as fﬂEUIt of the
false documents was $21,798.58. With these fiﬁures, we do
not have any dispute. ‘Your Honour has also heard the Crown's
interpretation of the facts. Now Your Honour can well imaging
that in determining the penalty to be imposed, it is importany
for the Court to know what the Defence story is, as well as
the Crown's, for the story told may mitigate one's involve-
ment in a particular crime. Prior to Mr. Maclean's election
to the Provincial Legislature, in September, October of 1981,
Mr. MaclLean was a very active community minded and spirited
member of the County of Inverness. He did become involved
in a motel known as Sheiling Motel. Shortly before his
election in 1981, the Sheiling was having severe financial
problems, which caused the Government of Nova Scotia to
foreclose on the mortgage, leaving Mr. Maclean in a very
precarious position. The Motel was eventually sold at a
foreclosure sale, to my client's brother, who began managing
it, and trying to make a go of this financially troubled
business. After the Motel had been sold, and after my client
became elected to the Provincial Legislature, my client, I
respectfully submit, did maintain a constituency office in

the Motel. Because of the embarrassment that my client felt
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that this would cause the Government, he wrongfully decided
that he would make claims for office rent 1nit1a11y
through his own business, known as Bluenose Fgferprises
Limited. In this way, members of the Oppositi;n would not
know that he was supporting his brother's company by making
contributions to {t, fhere's no question that Bluenose Enter-
prises Limited did not receive any funds from Mr. Maclean
for office rent, All moneys paid to Bluenose Enterprises
Limited as a result of receipts submitted, were i{n fact the
moneys legitimately owed to my client for office rent. At
the time of submitting these false documents, there was no
element of fraud, nor was there any element of a dishonest
taking on the part of my client. The signature of Roberta
MacKinnon found on a number of the receipts submitted, even
though she did not Place them there, it is our respectful
submission that Roberta MacKinnon did in fact give her
approval for us to use her signature, Bven though Mrs.
MacKinnon may not have a recollection of giving approval to
my client, my client still has distinct recall of approval
being given. 1In 1982, the general Regulations made pursuant
to Section 43 of the House of Assembly Act, Section 6(2),
states: Notwithstanding sub Regulations 1 and 2, no Member
shall be entitled under this Regulation to reimbursement for
(a) expenses incurred in employing a member of his fanily;

(b) rental of space in a Member's residence or a property
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owned by a member of his family; and (c) postage. Family
was not defined by the Regulations. In 1983,?£;e Report of
the Auditor General, on page 49, states: An oye&all conclusiog
was that there were serious f{naccuracies in cké'ﬂouse of
Assemably Act, the Executive Council Act, and the accom-
panying Regulations relating to expense allowances for Member
of the House and of the Executive Council. These 1naccurac1e]
relate to voids, contradictions, overlaps, and other defi-
ciencies, and have made it extremely difficult in many cases
to be certain of the intent of the legislation. The possi-
bilities for misinterpretation and error also poses problems
for the claimants and those responsible for the approval of
the expense claims. In 1984, in light of the recommendations
of the Auditor General, the Legislature's Internal Economy
Board, Regulation No.l, Section 11, approved on December 2nd,
1984, finally defined Family Member or Relative as follows -
Notwithstanding anything contained therein, no payment nm}
be made pursuant to this Regulation to any spouse, child,
parent, or family member, or relative, of a Member, for
services performed by or on account of the Member. As the:
Crown pointed out, the Regulations prevented Members of the
House of Assembly who had constituency offices, from renting
from their immediate members of their family. When this
Regulation was brought to the attention of my client, that

he should not be putting his expenses from Bluenose Enterprise
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Limited in, he then transferred the payments Q{_receipts from
Bluenose Enterprises Limited to Joan Briggs.: The purpose
for changing over to Joan Briggs was simply th%F he did not
want certain members of the Government to kné;fin fact that
he was renting an office at the Sheiling Motel. If in fact
my client had disclosed the proper sources, as to where the
money was going, he would not be before Your Honour this
morning, for until the new Regulation made in 1984 defined
Family Member, I respectfully submit, there was nothing
wrong in him renting space from his brother. For the period
in question, my client made these receipts showing payment
to Joan Briggs, when in fact Joan Briggs did not receive any
moneys. As Mr. Claire in his submission states, Joan Briggs
did not give permission for her signature to be placed on
the receipts. On April 17th, however, in 1986, a Mr. Duncan
Ivan MacRenzie gave his lawyer, Mr. J. Bernard Boudreau of
Sydney, a statement which was forwarded on to the R.C.M.P.,
with a copy to myself. In that statement he says: When I
went into the office, he was talking on the telephone. I
don't recall the details of the telephone conversation.
When he hung up the phone, he turned to the lady - he was
standing - and said to the lady who was sitting, and said,
Well, Joan, I guess we qualify for office expenses after all,
which means I'll be signing your name again. She turmed to

him, and said, You've been doing it for so long now, what's
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the difference. Or words to that effect. The part I recall
specifically is that he would be signing he{ name again.

In regards to Count 3, there is no questlon{ﬁnyt Mrs. DeCoste
worked in the house of Mr. MacLean. As Your Honour can well
appreciate, the life of a politican does not stop after the
hour of 4:30, when thé constituency office closes, or when
the constituency office is not open. On a continuous basis
Mrs. DeCoste answered telephones, made coffee, served
constituents who came to see Mr. Maclean, and took messages
on behalf of Mr. MacLean. 1In light of the interpretation
given to the vague Regulations by my client, he thought that
this was a proper claim to be Placed in his expense account.
By pleading guilty to the additional count of uttering

false documents, which is the so-called Sheiling receipts,
what my client is pleading guilty to i{s a case of personal
mismanagement, and his failure to keep account of invoices
to substantiate the expense claimed, where substantiation

is needed. As Mr. Maclean often stated to me, he's a
politican, but unfortunately not a bookkeeper. During the
summer and fall of 1982, Mr. MacLean was the Chainnan of a
special committee known as the Off Shore Committee, and he
had to make several trips to Halifax when the Legislature
was not in session, for the pPurpose of meeting oil company
Executives and personnel. His bookkeeping was completely

inadequate, whereby he forgot to obtain receipts, or he lost
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them once he in fact received them. When tﬂgxtime Came to
make up his expense account, which was in tﬁe Tange of
several thousand dollars, and realizing thaﬁ 4e did not have
the receipts that were required in order to :ﬁbport his
claim, he approached the office manager of the Sheiiing, and,
as Mr. Claire said, asked her to make out receipts for the
approximate days, for one night's stays that he was in
Halifax. It i{s my client's position that the number of
trips that he actually made to Halifax will completely offset
the amounts that in fact were paid in the course with the
false receipts submitted. It is as result of his negligence
on his part, that he now finds himself having to plead guilcy
to that particular count. In asking the Court to accept a
recommendation of fining Mr. MacLean - and I am respectfully
saying that total fine of $5,000.00, which is $1225.00 per
count, plus the one day in Jail, being his Court appearance,
I ask the Court to Keep in mind the following facts. Mr.
MacLean is 49 years of age, married, a father of eight
children. He has no Prior record. He was first elected to
the Provincial Legislature in 1981, and in November of 1983
he was appointed Minister of Culture, Recreation and Fitness.
He maintained that position from November of 1983 to March
of 1986. As a member of the Progressive Conservative Party,

he headed up the important Committee on the Off Shore. And |

he served on the Select Committee for Tourism, and various
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other House Committees. Prior to his electi?u_as a Provincial
Member of Parliament, he was the Mayor of Po%tfHawkesbury.
from 1983 to 1981. He served on the Port Hatkésbury Town
Council from 1964 to 1981, and prior to becomfﬁg Mayor he
was the Deputy Mayor, from 1969 to 1973. He is the former
President of the Strait Pirates Hockey Association, and a

former President of the Inverness County Progressive

Conservative Assocation. He was appointed Honorary Chairman
of Fund Raising for the Strait Richmond Hospital, and he {s

8 Charter Member of the Lions Club of Port Hawkesbury, and

a member of the Chamber of Commerce. This community spirited
and hard working individual has gone through the process,

has learned a very valuable lesson, and the conviction regis-
tered against him will be something that he will have to

live with. In applying the proper principles of sentencing,
which Your Honour is well aware of, it {is my respectful
submission that all the principles of sentencing will be met
by the imposition of the penalty that i{s being asked for by
the Crown. And those, if Your Honour pleases, are my

respectful submissions.

MR. CLAIRE: Your Honour, I only take {ssue with one item

brought up by my Learned Friend - the affidavit shown to Miss
Briggs - or it was given to,the R.C.M.P., it was shown to

Miss Briggs, and she has no recollection of that conversation.
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THE COURT: Thank you gentlemen. The situation {s one where
there is a plea of guilty to four counts und;rvSection 426,
commonly referred to as uttering. I think we t certainly
Counsel is familiar with the principles of s;ﬁtencing as set
out by our Appeal Court on several occasions, and they briefly
are the question of deferrence, both specific and general.
Of course there is the matter of rehabilitation of the
individual involved. We have the overriding principle which
our Appeal Court says is most important - it is the protectior
of the public from similar offences from either the defendant
or other persons in similar situations. And of course, the
question of restitution, which apparently doesn't seem to be
something that this Court has to address, because the victim
in this case, which is the Province, {s in the position to
recover their moneys. So it is not necessary that it be
ordered that it be paid. And lastly, of course, there is
the matter of penalty, punative penalty, as a form of puhish-
ment for a wrongdoing. Well, we have this type of case on
a regular basis from various members of the public. Of coursd
when it happene, someone in relation to a person of this
defendant's status in the community, it generates consider-

ably more attention than it does to someone else who may have

committed a similar type of offence, and isn't as well known |
to everyone concerned. And I think the very fact that someone
in Mr. MaclLean's position can find himself before the Courts



10

20

25

86

pir s 2!
23

for this type of offence, regardless of what his particular
position of positions may have been, is in 1£s¢1f a very
strong form of general deterrence to other meméers in
similar situations, from committing the same‘;ffence. Becaus*
it makes it quite plain to them that, regardless of what
their position in the ?ublic Service, or any other service,
might be, they are not above being brought before the Courts
for any offence which they may see fit to commit, thinking
that they can do it perhaps because of the position they are
in, and not be observed. I don't think that there {is nnf
requirement for specific deterrence in Mr. MaclLean's situa-
tion, or for that matter, {n relation to rehabilitation. I
don't think those are two matters that are seriously to be
considered in his situation, So, it brings us then really
to the questiun of whether or not there should be punative
penalty imposed for the commission of such an offence. The
Criminal Code sets out certain matters. I might say that I
find it rather hard to accept Mr. Pink's explanation that
none of this was done for personal gain. It seems to me
that regardless of where the money gues, it was being done
through the defendant for his own personal purposes. And I
also find it rather hard to accept that the fault lies
completely with the legislation or the Regulations. However,
having said that, and guilty pleas having been entered -

and certainly I concur with Mr. Claire that the fact of
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entering a guilty plea {n this set of ¢ircumstances saves
not only the Courts and éveryone involved, it also saves the
People who would otherwise have to be witnefifs from appearin
- and that {s something I think has to be taken into consi-
deration. Having satd all of that, on the fourth count, whic
is the first one plea&ed guilty to, there will be one day,
considered served, plus a fine of $1500.00. On the sixth
count, there will be the statutory one day, plus a fine of
$1500.00. On the eighth count, there will be the statutory
one day, plus another fine of $1500.00. And on the tenth
count, one day, plus a fine of $1500.00..., Mr. Pink, does
your client require time?
MR. PINR: Yes, we would require ninety days, {f Your Honour
pleases,
THE COURT: Pay by the 15th of January, 1987.

MATTER ADJOURNED



